
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Bankston

AGENDA September 17, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Bankston

Minutes Recessed Meeting - August 27, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - August 27, 2014

Minutes September 3 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes

Minutes September 10 2014 Recessed Meeting Minutes

Report Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - September 8, 2014

Report Criminal Court Clerk's Report - July 1, 2013 thru June 30, 2014

Res. No. 914-12 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions and the bond of
Hamilton County elected officials; to file the oath of Hamilton County elected officials, the oath of
Hamilton County Board of Commissioners, the oath of Chairman and Chairman Pro Tempore of
the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners, the oath of the Judge of the Tennessee Court of
Appeals, Eastern District, the oath of members of the Hamilton County Board of Education, the
oath of the Judge of the town of Signal Mountain, the oath of Deputy County clerks, the oath of
Deputy Registers, the oath of Deputy Trustees, the oath of Deputy Circuit Court clerks, the oath
of Jury Coordinators, and the oath of Deputy Sheriffs.

Res. No. 914-13 Number Not Used

Res. No. 914-14 A Resolution to rezone from M-1 industrial district to R-1 single family residential district,
properties located in the 4000 block of Banner Crest Drive; 6400 block Brittany Lane; 5700 block
of Burning Bush Lane; 8300 block Crossbow Court; 5200 block Darrowby Drive; 6100 block Flag
Point Drive; 6200 & 6400 blocks of Flag Point Drive; 6500-7200 blocks Flagstone Drive; 5500
block Hidden Oaks Lane; 4900-5400 blocks of Hunter Village Drive; 5300 block of Kelly`s Point;
5700 block Knotty Pine Drive; 5600 block Kristy Lane; 5400 block Lodestone Drive; 3900 block
Mount Verd Lane; 5500 block Old Hunter Road; 7100-7200  blocks of Teaberry Court;
8200-8400 blocks Troubadour Way; and the 5200-5300 blocks Village Garden Drive.

Res. No. 914-15 A Resolution to rezone from C-2 local business commercial district and R-2A rural residential
district, property located at 1708 Crabtree Road.

Res. No. 914-16 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to accept a U.S. Department of Homeland Security
2014 Port Security Grant and amending the capital budget of the Sheriff’s Office by adding
$59,000 to revenues and expenditures.

Res. No. 914-17 A Resolution to approve a contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the Town of Walden,
Tennessee, in order to provide law enforcement services and related vehicle expenses
beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2017, which is mutually renewable for an additional
three periods of three years each.   Additionally the Town of Walden will reimburse the purchase
two automobiles.

Res. No. 914-18 A Resolution of the Legislative Body of Hamilton County, Tennessee declaring its intention to
issue General Obligation Bonds or Bond Anticipation Notes in an aggregate principal amount
estimated not to exceed $3,073,749 and to reimburse the General Fund with the proceeds of
such bonds for capital expenditures made in connection with the Project.

Res. No. 914-19 A Resolution approving the purchase of one (1) mobile command center, equipment, Mobile
Solutions software and maintenance amounting to $30,357.37 from Beeler Impression for
Emergency Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 914-20 A Resolution accepting the quotation of SAI Interactive, Inc. d/b/a Thinking Media for Learning
Blade Site software for Hamilton County middle schools amounting to $48,000.00 and to amend
the General Fund budget from previously unbudgeted funds and authorizing the County Mayor
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 914-21 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement with Artech
Design Group, Inc. for final design services for the Dallas Bay Firehall #2 addition for an amount
not to exceed $178,511.00.

Res. No. 914-22 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement with
Michael Brady, Inc. for final design services for the Sale Creek Volunteer Fire Department
Headquarters for an amount not to exceed $226,500.00.

Res. No. 914-23 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement with
Hefferlin + Kronenberg Architects, PLLC, for final design services for the New Tri-Community
Firehall #3 for an amount not to exceed $125,983.00.

Res. No. 914-24 A Resolution to increase the contract with Ragan-Smith Associates, Inc. for the design of the
Ooltewah-Georgetown Road at Mountain View Road/Blanche Road intersection improvements
for an amount not to exceed $40,500.00 of previously budgeted funds.

Res. No. 914-25 A Resolution authorizing the payment of sixty thousand dollars ($60,000.00) in settlement of
claims against Hamilton County, Tennessee, as brought by John Doub for injuries received from
a vehicular-bicycle accident of May 15, 2012.

Res. No. 914-26 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to continue the contract, as executed on February
19, 2014 with the passage of Resolution 214-32, between the State of Tennessee, Department
of Health and Hamilton County, Tennessee, Health Services Division, operating as the
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department for the provision of community health
prevention services for the time period beginning January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2018,
amending the 2014/2015 budget by increasing revenues by $70,600 and expenses by $70,600.

Res. No. 914-27 A Resolution accepting the proposal of Fairway Outdoor Advertising Company for a Tobacco
Exposure Prevention Billboard Campaign for a period of twenty (20) weeks, beginning October
2014, ending February 2015, amounting to $28,760 for the Health Services Division, operating
as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 914-28 A Resolution accepting the quotation of Screenvision for cinema advertising commercials for the
Tobacco Exposure Prevention Campaign in local theatres for a period of fifty-two (52) weeks,
beginning October 2014, amounting to $19,732 for the Health Services Division, operating as
the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign
any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 914-29 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a continuation contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of
$278,600.00 to provide Childhood Immunization Services in Hamilton County, for the period of
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015.

Res. No. 914-30 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to amend a contract between the State of
Tennessee, Department of Health and Hamilton County, Tennessee, Health Services Division,
operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department for the provision of a rape
prevention education program using funds from the State of Tennessee, Department of Health in
the amount not to exceed $50,000.00 thereby requiring the health department’s revenue and
expense budget be increased by $10,000.00 for the period beginning November 1, 2013, ending
January 31, 2015.

Res. No. 914-31 A Resolution to make certain findings relating to the Van De Wiele, Inc. project, to delegate
certain authority to the Industrial Development Board of the City of Chattanooga, and to
authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement for Payments In Lieu Of Ad
Valorem Taxes.



ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 27, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 27th day of August, 2014, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Henry, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioners Boyd and Mackey were absent.  Total 

present - 7.  Total absent – 2. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Chairman Skillern later reported that Commissioners Boyd and Mackey would 

not be in attendance for today’s meeting. 

 

 1 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 

 
 Commissioner Graham welcomed Pastor Clay Thomas, Rivermont Presbyterian 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

 Chairman Skillern welcomed his wife Betty, District 1 Commissioner-elect Randy 

Fairbanks, District 7 Commissioner-elect Sabrena Turner-Smedley, and former City of 

Chattanooga Mayor Jon Kinsey to the meeting. 

 

TENNESSEE STATE REPRESENTATIVE VINCE DEAN RESIGNATION LETTER 

 

 Clerk Knowles requested that letters of resignation, effective August 31, 2014, 

from Tennessee State Representative Vince Dean addressed to Clerk Knowles and 

Governor Bill Haslam be submitted for the record.  

 

 Upon questioning by Chairman Skillern, Attorney Taylor informed the 

Commission that the intent to fill the vacancy for the State Representative position 

would need to be legally advertised. His understanding of the law was that the 

advertisement process could not begin until the resignation became effective August 31, 

2014.   

 

 2 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 

 
DISCUSSION RE: CITY OF CHATTANOOGA POLICE FIRING RANGE 

 

 Commissioner Beck spoke regarding morning news reports that City and County 

officials had abandoned East 12th Street plans to relocate the law enforcement firing 

range from Moccasin Bend. He noted that the Commission had not voted to abandon 

these plans. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger stated that he met Monday with Chattanooga Mayor Andy 

Berke and representatives from the Sheriff and Police Departments. During the 

meeting, it became evident that the feedback from local law enforcement was to remain 

at the current site. Their response had indicated that the proposed design of the new 

facility would not adequately meet all training needs. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger reported that the Commission had previously approved an 

appropriation of up to $1,500,000 for this project. He noted that the funds would no 

longer be needed for this purpose. 

 

 Chairman Skillern questioned whether the County had paid any money towards 

this project.  Mayor Coppinger responded that the City of Chattanooga had paid an 

architect for the design of the proposed facility.  There had been no request by the City 

for reimbursement by the County. 

 

 3 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 

 
 Commissioner Haynes noted that the Friends of Moccasin Bend organization had 

been making preparations for the property where the firing range was currently located. 

He asked if there had been any plans made on how that issue would move forward. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger responded that in a month, Friends of Moccasin Bend 

anticipated to receive federal funding for their plans to build a museum and visitors 

center. He noted that before the City and County could have given the site to the 

National Park Service, a costly remediation of the property would have been necessary.  

 

PRESENTATION – TRUSTEE BILL HULLANDER – UNPAID REAL PROPERTY 

TAXES 

 

 Trustee Bill Hullander reported statistical figures regarding 2013 unpaid real 

property taxes as of July 30, 2014. A packet had been made available to each member 

of the Commission reflecting their respective district amounts.  The packet and a one-

page summary of these reports was also submitted to the Clerk’s office for the record.  

 

 Chairman Skillern asked Commissioners if there was any additional business to 

be brought before the Recessed Meeting.  

 

 

Hearing none, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned.   

 4 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 

 
 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 27, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 27th day of August, 2014, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner 

Henry, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioners Boyd and Mackey were absent.  Total 

present - 7.  Total absent – 2. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Chairman Skillern reported during the Recessed Meeting that Commissioners 

Boyd and Mackey would not be in attendance for today’s meeting. 

 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• Resolution No. 914-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• An amended County Trustee Monthly Report for the month of June 2014 would 
be submitted as a matter of record. 

• An amended County Trustee Excess Report for the month of June 2014 would 
be submitted as a matter of record. 

• A County Trustee Monthly Report for the month of July 2014 would be submitted 
as a matter of record. 

• A County Trustee Excess Fee Report for the month of July 2014 would be 
submitted as a matter of record. 

• Resolution No. 914-2 was not used. 
• Resolutions No. 914-3 through 914-7 and 914-9 were assigned to the Finance 

Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 
• Resolution No. 914-8 was assigned to the Roads Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Bankston. 
• Resolution No. 914-10 was assigned to the Legal Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Fields. 
 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 
 

Members of the Commission, Attorney Taylor, and Mayor Coppinger expressed 

their deepest gratitude to Chairman Skillern and Commissioner Henry for their many 

years of service to Hamilton County. Each looked forward to continuing to work with 

Commissioner Henry in a different capacity as he begins his term as Circuit Court Clerk 

on Tuesday, September 2nd.  

 

Commissioner Henry thanked the Commission for their support. He looked back 

on how much the County had grown and prospered over the years and anticipated it 

would continue to do so. 

 

 Chairman Skillern noted that the best aspect of his nearly 34 years of public 

service was the people he had worked with. He expressed appreciation to the past and 

present Commission and staff for their efforts to improve quality of life in Hamilton 

County. He thanked everyone for the opportunity to serve.  

 

Former City of Chattanooga Mayor Jon Kinsey also thanked both Commissioners 

for their years of service and leadership. 

 

Commissioner Fields invited everyone to attend the Signal Mountain Lions Club 

barbeque on Labor Day, September 1st. 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 
 

Mayor Coppinger announced that Standard & Poor’s (S&P) had recently 

reaffirmed Hamilton County’s AAA bond rating. He expressed appreciation to the 

Finance Department for their hard work to submit all the necessary information in a 

short period of time. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Sandy Hughes, President of the Hamilton County Education Association (HCEA), 

informed the Commission that the School Board would be considering significant 

changes to teacher’s health insurance plan on Thursday, August 28th. She stated a 

desire that the School Board seek alternative means of funding that would not affect 

teacher’s compensation levels. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 27, 2014 
 
 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_______  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 
 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 3, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 3rd day of September, 2014, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

County Attorney Taylor stated that in accordance with Rules of Order established 

governing the first Regular Meeting for the term; County Clerk Bill Knowles would 

convene the meeting for the purpose of electing a Chairman and Chairman Pro 

Tempore for the ensuing year.  

 

Present and presiding was Bill Knowles, County Clerk.  Chief Deputy County 

Clerk Debbie Rollins called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner Beck, Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner 

Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

Commissioner Bankston stated that Pastor Steve Caudle, Greater Second 

Baptist Church was scheduled to give the invocation. In his absence, County Trustee 

Bill Hullander was asked to offer prayer.  Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to 

the flag. 

 

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Clerk Knowles stated that the floor was open for nominations to elect a Chairman 

for the ensuing year. 

 

 Commissioner Mackey nominated Greg Beck to serve as Chairman.   

 

 Commissioner Graham nominated Jim Fields to serve as Chairman.   

 

 Commissioner Turner-Smedley nominated Marty Haynes to serve as Chairman.   

 

 Clerk Knowles asked if there were other nominations. There were none. 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 

The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Greg 

Beck, Jim Fields, and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  

Commissioners voted as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner 

Beck, “Greg Beck”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty 

Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Mackey, “Greg Beck”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  

Total votes for Greg Beck – 2.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 4.  Total votes for Marty 

Haynes – 3.   

 

Clerk Knowles reminded the Commission that five votes were required to elect.  

He asked how the Commission desired to proceed.  Commissioner Fields noted in the 

past the person receiving the lowest vote was dropped from the ballot. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

remove from consideration the individual receiving the lowest number of votes. There 

was no discussion, and the foregoing motion was unanimously adopted by voice vote.  

Total present - 9.  Total Absent - 0. 

 

Clerk Knowles asked for a second roll call with the names of Jim Fields and 

Marty Haynes in consideration to serve as Chairman. 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 

The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Commissioners Beck and Mackey 

abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 

4.  Total votes for Marty Haynes – 3.  Total Abstentions – 2.  

 

 Clerk Knowles asked that the roll call be called for a third time. 

 

The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Commissioners Beck and Mackey 

abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 

4.  Total votes for Marty Haynes – 3.  Total Abstentions – 2.  

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 Attorney Taylor suggested that if it were the desire of the Commission, a five 

minute recess could be called in order to caucus. He noted that this would be a public 

caucus in order to comply with the Sunshine Law. 

 

 Clerk Knowles stated that without objection, the meeting would be recessed for 

five minutes.  There was no objection. 

 

- - - - - - - -  

 

 The meeting was called back to order. Clerk Knowles asked that the roll be 

called for the fourth time on the nominations of Jim Fields and Marty Haynes for 

Chairman.  

 

 The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Commissioners Beck and Mackey 

abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 

4.  Total votes for Marty Haynes – 3.  Total Abstentions – 2.  

 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 Clerk Knowles asked for a fifth roll call on the nominations. 

 

 The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Commissioners Beck and Mackey 

abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 

4.  Total votes for Marty Haynes – 3.  Total Abstentions – 2. 

 

 Attorney Taylor stated that no further action could be taken until a Chairman had 

been selected. 

 

 Clerk Knowles asked for a sixth roll call on the nominations for Chairman. 

 

 The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Commissioners Beck and Mackey 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 

4.  Total votes for Marty Haynes – 3.  Total Abstentions – 2. 

 

 Commissioner Graham shared a concern that being unable to have a majority 

consensus for Commission Chairman after six votes indicated no leadership by 

members of the Commission. He expressed the feeling that to abstain was to refuse to 

vote on this important matter. He suggested another five-minute recess be called for the 

purpose of moving forward on this matter.  

 

 Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding his decision to abstain from voting on 

these two individuals. He responded that he had submitted the name of Greg Beck in 

nomination after much thought because of Commissioner Beck’s ten years’ experience 

and leadership on the Commission.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields that 

a five-minute recess be called. The foregoing motion was unanimously adopted by 

acclamation.  Total present - 9.  Total absent - 0. 

 

- - - - - - - -  

 

 The meeting was called back to order. Clerk Knowles asked that the roll be 

called for a seventh time on the nominations for Chairman.  

 7 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 

 The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

and Marty Haynes to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marty Haynes”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marty Haynes”; and 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marty Haynes”. Commissioners Beck and Mackey 

abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 

4.  Total votes for Marty Haynes – 3.  Total Abstentions – 2. 

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Beck, Attorney Taylor again stated that no 

further business could be conducted by the Commission until a Chairman was elected. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, that 

the meeting be adjourned. The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

 Commissioner Graham asked whether adjourning today’s meeting would mean 

that the Resolutions on today’s agenda could not be considered until a future date.  

Attorney Taylor indicated that the departments who had submitted the Resolutions 

would be unable to take any further action until the Resolutions were approved.  He 

suggested that a Motion to recess would be more appropriate to allow action next week 

 8 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

when the Commission would be meeting for the regularly scheduled agenda preparation 

session. 

 

 Commissioner Beck suggested that the other Commissioners consider reaching 

a compromise and elect a chairman.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes expressed his appreciation for the nomination to serve as 

Chairman.  He stated that he was withdrawing his name from consideration. 

 

 Commissioner Beck indicated his agreement to withdraw his previous motion to 

adjourn today’s meeting.   

 

 Clerk Knowles asked for an eighth roll call on the nomination of Jim Fields. 

 

 The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Jim Fields 

to serve as Commission Chairman.  Commissioners voted as follows:  Commissioner 

Bankston, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Beck, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Boyd, “Jim 

Fields”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Fields, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Jim Fields”; Commissioner Haynes, “Jim Fields”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Jim Fields”; and Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Jim Fields”. 

Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Jim Fields – 9.   

 

 9 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 Clerk Knowles announced that Commissioner Fields had been unanimously 

elected as Chairman. 

 

Clerk Knowles opened the floor for nominations for Chairman Pro Tempore. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd nominated Chester Bankston to serve as Chairman Pro 

Tempore.   

 

 Clerk Knowles asked if there were other nominations. There were none. 

 

 The roll was called by Chief Deputy Clerk Rollins on the nomination of Chester 

Bankston to serve as Commission Chairman Pro Tempore.  Commissioners voted as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Chester Bankston”; Commissioner Beck, “Chester 

Bankston”; Commissioner Boyd, “Chester Bankston”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Chester Bankston”; Commissioner Fields, “Chester Bankston”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Chester Bankston”; Commissioner Haynes, “Chester Bankston”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Chester Bankston”; and Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Chester Bankston”. 

Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for Chester Bankston – 9.   

 

 Clerk Knowles announced that Commissioner Bankston had been unanimously 

elected as Chairman Pro Tempore. 

 

 10 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

OATH OF OFFICE FOR CHAIRMAN AND CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Clerk Knowles administered the Oath of Office to Commissioner Jim Fields who 

was elected Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 

Clerk Knowles administered the Oath of Office to Commissioner Chester 

Bankston who was elected Chairman Pro Tempore for the ensuing year. 

 

 Chairman Fields took the seat as Chairman at this time.  He thanked the 

Commission for their support and stated he looked forward to serving in this capacity. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of August 13, 2014, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of August 13, 2014, and the Regular Meeting of August 20, 2014, be approved, 

treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

 11 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 914-1.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-2  NUMBER NOT USED. 

 

TRUSTEE’S AMENDED EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The amended Trustee’s excess fee report for June 2014 was submitted and 

made a matter of record.  

 

 12 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

TRUSTEE’S AMENDED MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The amended Trustee’s monthly report for June 2014 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for July 2014 was submitted and made a matter 

of record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for July 2014 was submitted and made a matter of 

record.  

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions No. 914-3 through 914-7 be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-3  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

ELECTION BALLOTS FOR THE STATE PRIMARY AND COUNTY GENERAL 

ELECTIONS AMOUNTING TO $46,146.16 FROM MID-WEST PRINTING COMPANY 

 13 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

FOR THE ELECTION COMMISSION AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-4  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

CLASSIFIED LEGAL ADS  FOR THE STATE PRIMARY AND COUNTY GENERAL 

ELECTIONS FROM CHATTANOOGA PUBLISHING COMPANY FOR THE ELECTION 

COMMISSION AMOUNTING TO $16,813.62 AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN  ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-5  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF TWO 

(2) LIFEPAK 15 CARDIAC MONITOR/DEFIBRILLATORS AND SUPPLIES 

AMOUNTING TO $66,016.40 FROM PHYSIO CONTROL, INC. FOR EMERGENCY 

MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-6  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF COMPETITION 

ATHLETIC SURFACES, INC. TO RESURFACE FOUR (4) TENNIS COURTS AT 

STANDIFER GAP PARK AMOUNTING TO $16,900.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

 14 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-7  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CUSTOM 

TRUCK AND BODY WORKS, INC. FOR FOUR (4) NEW TYPE I MEDIUM DUTY 

AMBULANCES AMOUNTING TO $725,872.00 FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL 

SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 914-3 through 

914-7 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Turner-

Smedley, to adopt Resolutions No. 914-3 through 914-7.  The motion was not voted on 

at this time. 

 

Commissioner Haynes indicated his desire to abstain from voting on Resolution 

No. 914-6 due to a conflict of interest.  

 

The foregoing Resolutions 914-3, 4, 5, and 7 were unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

 15 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

A separate roll call sheet was prepared and is submitted regarding Resolution 

914-6. It reflects the action based on Commissioner Haynes desire to abstain. The vote 

for the record  re: 914-6 is entered into the minutes as follows:  Commissioner 

Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Abstain”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.  Total Abstentions – 1.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-8  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS” SO AS TO CHANGE THE ROADWAY NAME FOR 

THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROAD: CHAUNCEY CEMETERY ROAD TO CHANCEY 

CEMETERY ROAD. 

 

Commissioner Bankston provided details regarding Resolution No. 914-8 and 

stated that the Zoning Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 914-8.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

 16 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-9  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BROOKER 

FORD, INC. FOR FIVE (5) PICKUP TRUCKS AMOUNTING TO $106,733.00 FOR THE 

HIGHWAY AND RECREATION DEPARTMENTS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 914-9 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 914-9.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks requested further information regarding the bidding 

process. He asked whether any provisions were made to encourage local bidders. 

 

 17 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

Purchasing Director Gail Roppo responded that the County used an electronic 

bidding system.  All local companies were encouraged to register.  In the registration 

process, companies could select what type of bidding opportunities they would like to 

receive notifications for. She stated that to her knowledge, the majority of local auto 

dealers were registered to receive bid notifications such as the one sent out for today’s 

Resolution. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks emphasized the benefits of local businesses being 

selected for local jobs.  He asked whether purchasing rules allowed for a local company 

to receive a winning bid if they were within a small margin of the lowest bid by an out-of-

town company.  Ms. Roppo responded that purchasing rules required that the lowest-

and-best bid be selected, regardless of their location. There was not currently any local 

option preference. 

 

Commissioner Graham noted that Ms. Roppo had made many enhancements to 

the purchasing process since beginning as Purchasing Director and was a good 

resource for these questions.  He encouraged Commissioner Fairbanks to meet with 

Ms. Roppo to discuss the purchasing process in greater detail. 

 

Commissioner Boyd indicated his support of local vendors.  However, he could 

not support excluding all participating out-of-region bids as this allowed the County to 

spend the lowest amount for products and services.   

 18 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-10  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTINUATION 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH 

SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND THE CHATTANOOGA HUMAN SERVICES HEAD 

START/EARLY HEAD START PROGRAM FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MAY 31, 

2015. 

 

. Commissioner Bankston provided details regarding Resolution No. 914-10 and 

stated that the Legal Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 914-10.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

 19 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

TENNESSEE STATE REPRESENTATIVE VINCE DEAN RESIGNATION 

 

Chairman Fields stated that letters of resignation, effective August 31, 2014, from 

Tennessee State Representative Vince Dean had been submitted for the record at last 

week’s meeting.    

 

Upon questioning by Chairman Fields, Attorney Taylor informed the Commission 

that the intent to fill the vacancy for the State Representative position would need to be 

legally advertised. The public must be given a seven-day notification of the intent to fill 

the vacancy. He stated that if it were the desire of the Commission, today’s meeting 

could be recessed until Wednesday, September 10 for the purpose of filling the 

vacancy. He further stated that it would be considered adequate public notification if the 

local media made this information available today as well as the Commission’s notice in 

today’s public meeting of the intent to fill the vacancy. 

 

 20 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

Clerk Knowles informed the Commission that the law requires seven (7) day 

notice to the public in a newspaper of general circulation.  Due to deadline requirements 

by the Chattanooga Times Free Press, the earliest legal advertisement could not be 

published until Friday, September 5. This was not adequate time frame for action at 

next Wednesday’s meeting. He further indicated that if it was the Commission’s desire, 

advertisement could be posted on the County website following today’s meeting. 

 

 Attorney Taylor responded that it was his opinion that because local press was in 

attendance for today’s meeting, the requirement would be met if the press made this 

information available to the public today. He stated that anyone from the general public 

could also submit names for consideration at that meeting. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, that 

today’s meeting be recessed until Wednesday, September 10 for the purpose of filling 

the vacancy left by Tennessee State Representative Vince Dean and any other 

business that may come before the Commission at that time.  The foregoing motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.     

 21 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Securities and Corrections Committee, 

reported that each Commissioner should have received a package of information 

regarding the upcoming Judicial Commissioner appointment process.  He noted that 

Judicial Commissioners Ron Powers and Nathan Goggans’ terms would expire October 

31, 2014. He stated that Resolution No. 1013-21, which appointed these individuals, 

along with the two individuals’ resumes, had been included as part of this packet of 

information.  He stated that a Security and Corrections Committee meeting would be 

held on Wednesday, September 10 to discuss the appointment process. 

 

Members of the Commission and Mayor Coppinger thanked the residents of 

Hamilton County for their support during the recent 2014 general election. 

 

Commissioner Graham reported that the Chattanooga City Council had recently 

challenged the County Commission to participate in an ice-bucket fundraising event 

which would benefit individuals with amyotrophic lateral sclerosis (ALS), also known as 

Lou Gehrig’s disease. He stated his willingness to join in this effort and encouraged 

members of the Commission as well. 

 

 22 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

Several members of the Commission also emphasized the importance of helping 

fund this cause.  Some preferred to make donations rather than participate in the bucket 

challenge.  Mayor Coppinger indicated he would have his staff work with Commissioner 

Graham to coordinate efforts to respond to the challenge. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks announced that Allen Elementary School had recently 

been named a Reward School by the State of Tennessee.  He noted that this award 

was based on TCAP test scores and only 67 schools in the State had been selected for 

this achievement. 

 

Commissioner Mackey reported that the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga 

(UTC) Mocs football team would have their first home game of the season this 

Saturday, September 6 at 6:00 PM at Finley Stadium.  He encouraged everyone to 

attend and support the team. 

 

CIRCUIT COURT CLERK PERSONNEL POLICY REVISIONS 

 

Attorney Taylor submitted for the record personnel policy revisions for the Circuit 

Court Clerk’s office as required by TCA Section 5-23-103. 

 

 23 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Alan Pressley, a resident at 3812 Deerfoot Drive, addressed the Commission 

regarding East Ridge High School Assistant Football Coach Austin Rhoden who had 

recently been diagnosed with brain cancer.  Mr. Pressley stated that he had coordinated 

with former University of Tennessee (UT) football coach to help assemble twelve 

commemorative shadowboxes. He noted that one of these shadowboxes would be 

presented to Mr. Rhoden at an upcoming East Ridge football game this Friday, 

September 5.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, September 10, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 

 24 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 

 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 10, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 10th day of September, 2014, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Bankston welcomed Pastor Darnell Baker, Second Missionary 

Baptist Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to 

the flag.  

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 

 

 2

RESOLUTION NO. 914-11 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING AN INDIVIDUAL TO THE 

TENNESSEE GENERAL ASSEMBLY, REPRESENTING THE 30TH LEGISLATIVE 

DISTRICT, TO SERVE FROM SEPTEMBER 10, 2014, UNTIL THE CERTIFICATION 

OF THE NOVEMBER 2014 TENNESSEE GENERAL ELECTION. 

 

 Chairman Fields spoke regarding Resolution No. 914-11.  He stated that Vince 

Dean had represented the 30th Legislative District in the Tennessee General Assembly, 

and had been elected in the August 7, 2014 General Election to the position of Hamilton 

County Criminal Court Clerk. It was noted that Mr. Dean had issued a letter of 

resignation effective August 31, 2014.  Chairman Fields stated that State law requires 

the Commission to appoint an individual to serve in this capacity until the results of the 

November 2014 General Elections are certified. 

 

 Chairman Fields asked Clerk Knowles whether notification to the public had been 

made regarding the Commission’s intent to fill the vacancy at today’s meeting. He 

stated that the Times Free Press had published a news article on their website. (Record 

shows that it was also publicly announced at the last Commission meeting) 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated that only one individual, Marc Gravitt, was on the 

General Election ballot for said position.  He stated that in accordance with State law, 

any registered voter present for today’s meeting would be given the opportunity to 

submit other names for consideration to the Commission. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 

 

 3

 

 He stated that without objection, the following procedure would be followed. After 

all names had been submitted, Commissioners would only vote on the names that had 

been nominated. No nomination would require a second. Voting would continue until a 

nominee received the five votes required by the State. No objection was made. 

 

 At this time, members of the public in the audience were given the opportunity to 

submit names for consideration. No names were submitted.  

 

 Chairman Fields stated that the floor was open for nominations to appoint an 

individual to the Tennessee General Assembly representing the 30th Legislative District. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes nominated Marc Gravitt to serve as a member of the 

Tennessee General Assembly filling the vacancy of Rep. Dean. 

 

 The roll was called by County Clerk Bill Knowles on the nomination of Marc 

Gravitt to serve as Tennessee House Representative for District 30.  Commissioners 

voted as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Marc Gravitt”; Commissioner Beck, “Marc 

Gravitt”; Commissioner Boyd, “Marc Gravitt”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Marc Gravitt”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Marc Gravitt”; Commissioner Haynes, “Marc Gravitt”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Marc Gravitt”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Marc Gravitt”; 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 

 

 4

and Chairman Fields “Marc Gravitt”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total votes for 

Marc Gravitt – 9.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that roll be called on the Resolution No. 914-11, with the 

name of Marc Gravitt inserted. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 914-11. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Attorney Taylor indicated he would transmit a revised Resolution with the name 

of Marc Gravitt inserted to the Clerk’s office as a matter of record. 

 

 Mr. Gravitt addressed the Commission and expressed his appreciation for their 

appointment. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 

 

 5

JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER APPOINTMENTS 

 

 Security and Corrections Committee Chairman Haynes reported that the terms of 

Judicial Commissioners Ron Powers and Nathaniel Goggans would expire on October 

31, 2014. Commissioner Haynes stated that the Security and Corrections Committee 

held a public meeting earlier that morning. It is the recommendation of the Committee 

that these two individuals be reappointed to their positions. He asked Attorney Taylor to 

draft a Resolution for the Commission’s consideration and action on the matter in two 

weeks. 

 

 Attorney Taylor indicated he would prepare an appropriate Resolution. 

 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS, CHAPLAIN SCHEDULE, AND PLANNING 

COMMISSION SCHEDULE 

 

 Chairman Fields reported that updated Committee Assignments, Planning 

Commission schedules, and Chaplain Schedules had been distributed to members of 

the Commission and the Clerk’s office.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting 

adjourned.   

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 

 

 6

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

















































































































































































































































































































No. 914-12 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY 
PUBLIC POSITIONS AND THE BOND OF HAMILTON COUNTY ELECTED 
OFFICIALS; TO FILE THE OATH OF HAMILTON COUNTY ELECTED 
OFFICIALS, THE OATH OF HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS, THE OATH OF CHAIRMAN AND CHAIRMAN PRO 
TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, THE 
OATH OF THE JUDGE OF THE TENNESSEE COURT OF APPEALS, EASTERN 
DISTRICT, THE OATH OF MEMBERS OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
EDUCATION, THE OATH OF THE JUDGE OF THE TOWN OF SIGNAL 
MOUNTAIN, THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY CLERKS, THE OATH OF 
DEPUTY REGISTERS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY TRUSTEES, THE OATH OF 
DEPUTY CIRCUIT COURT CLERKS, THE OATH OF JURY COORDINATORS, 
AND THE OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Commissioners, Hamilton County, Tennessee, in 
Session Assembled: 
 
WHEREAS,  William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to 

the records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the position so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the listing labeled “THE BOND OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY ELECTED OFFICIALS” have submitted for filing a bond as 
required; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to records of his office that the persons 

named on the attached listing labeled "THE OATH OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY ELECTED OFFICIALS" have taken the oath of office; and 

 



WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 
persons named on the attached listing labeled "THE OATH OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS" have taken the oath of office; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office the persons 

named on the attached listing labeled "THE OATH OF CHAIRMAN AND 
CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS" have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office the person 

named on the attached listing labeled "THE OATH OF THE JUDGE OF THE 
TENNESSEE COURT OF APPEALS, EASTERN DISTRICT" has taken the 
oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF MEMBERS OF 
THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION” have taken the 
oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF THE JUDGE 
OF THE TOWN OF SIGNAL MOUNTAIN” has taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
COUNTY CLERKS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
REGISTERS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
TRUSTEES” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
CIRCUIT COURT CLERKS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
 



WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 
persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF JURY 
COORDINATORS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY 
PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants therefore; and 

 
2. That persons listed on the “THE BOND OF HAMILTON COUNTY ELECTED 

OFFICIALS” are hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted; and 
 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF HAMILTON 

COUNTY ELECTED OFFICIALS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as 
taken: and 
 

4. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are 
filed as taken; and 

 
5. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF CHAIRMAN AND 

CHAIRMAN PRO TEMPORE OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 

 
6. That the person named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF THE JUDGE OF 

THE TENNESSEE COURT OF APPEALS, EASTERN DISTRICT” is accepted 
and the oath is therefore filed as taken; and 

 
7. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF MEMBERS OF 

THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION” are accepted and the 
oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 

 
8. That the person named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF THE JUDGE OF 

THE TOWN OF SIGNAL MOUNTAIN” is accepted and the oath therefore is filed 
as taken; and 

 



 

 

9. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERKS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 
 

10. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
REGISTERS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 
 

11. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
TRUSTEES” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 
 

12. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY CIRCUIT 
COURT CLERKS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 
 

13. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF JURY 
COORDINATORS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 
 

14. That the persons named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are filed as taken; and 
 

15. That each such person named on the listings hereinabove mentioned (which listings are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have been 
individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 

























































































































































































































No. 914-14 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM M-1 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE 4000 BLOCK OF 

BANNER CREST DR; 6400 BLOCK BRITTANY LANE; 5700 BLOCK OF BURNING 
BUSH LANE; 8300 BLOCK CROSSBOW COURT; 5200 BLOCK DARROWBY DRIVE; 
6100 BLOCK FLAG POINT DRIVE; 6200 & 6400 BLOCKS OF FLAG POINT DRIVE; 

6500-7200 BLOCKS FLAGSTONE DRIVE; 5500 BLOCK HIDDEN OAKS LANE; 4900-
5400 BLOCKS OF HUNTER VILLAGE DRIVE; 5300 BLOCK OF KELLY`S POINT; 5700 

BLOCK KNOTTY PINE DRIVE; 5600 BLOCK KRISTY LANE; 5400 BLOCK 
LODESTONE DRIVE; 3900 BLOCK MOUNT VERD LANE; 5500 BLOCK OLD HUNTER 

ROAD; 7100-7200  BLOCKS OF TEABERRY COURT; 8200-8400 BLOCKS 
TROUBADOUR WAY; AND THE 5200-5300 BLOCKS VILLAGE GARDEN DRIVE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Regional Planning Agency/Zoning Study, Flagstone Subdivision 
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone 
from  M-1 Industrial District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located in 
the 4000 block of Banner Crest Dr; 6400 block Brittany Lane; 5700 block of Burning Bush 
Lane; 8300 block Crossbow Court; 5200 block Darrowby Drive; 6100 blk Flag Point Drive; 
6200 & 6400 blocks of Flag Point Drive; 6500-7200 blocks Flagstone Drive; 5500 block 
Hidden Oaks Lane; 4900-5400 blocks of Hunter Village Drive; 5300 block of Kelly`s Point; 
5700 block Knotty Pine Drive; 5600 block Kristy Lane; 5400 block Lodestone Drive; 3900 
block Mt Verd Lane; 5500 block Old Hunter Rd; 7100-7200  blocks of Teaberry Ct; 8200-
8400 blocks Troubadour Way; and the 5200-5300 blocks Village Garden Drive, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Regional Planning Agency/Zoning Study, Flagstone Subdivision                                       
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been 
published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on September 17, 2014, concerning the passage of 
this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 



  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to rezone from M-1 Industrial 
District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located in the 4000 block of Banner Crest Dr; 
6400 block Brittany Lane; 5700 block of Burning Bush Lane; 8300 block Crossbow Court; 5200 block 
Darrowby Drive; 6100 blk Flag Point Drive; 6200 & 6400 blocks of Flag Point Drive; 6500-7200 blocks 
Flagstone Drive; 5500 block Hidden Oaks Lane; 4900-5400 blocks of Hunter Village Drive; 5300 block of 
Kelly`s Point; 5700 block Knotty Pine Drive; 5600 block Kristy Lane; 5400 block Lodestone Drive; 3900 block 
Mt Verd Lane; 5500 block Old Hunter Rd; 7100-7200  blocks of Teaberry Ct; 8200-8400 blocks Troubadour 
Way; and the 5200-5300 blocks Village Garden Drive.   
To be rezoned R-1: 

Tax Map Numbers  122-002.01, 122-002.04, 122-015.04, 122-055.01, 122G-A-002, 122G-A-003, 122G-
A-004, 122G-A-005, 122G-A-006, 122G-A-007, 122G-A-008, 122G-A-009, 122G-A-010, 122G-A-
010.01, 122G-A-013, 122G-A-014, 122G-A-015, 122G-A-016, 122G-A-017, 122G-A-018, 122G-A-019, 
122G-A-020, 122G-A-021, 122G-A-022, 122G-A-023, 122G-A-024, 122G-A-025, 122G-A-026, 122G-A-
027, 122G-A-028, 122G-A-030, 122G-A-031, 122G-A-032, 122G-A-033, 122G-A-034, 122G-A-035, 
122GT-A-036, 122G-A-037, 122G-A-038, 122G-A-039, 122H-A-001, 122H-A-002, 122G-A-003, 122H-A-
004, 122H-A-005, 122H-A-006, 122H-A-007, 122H-A-008, 122-H-A-009, 122H-A-010, 122H-A-010.01, 
122H-A-013, 122H-A-014, 122H-A-015, 122-H-A-016, 122H-A-017, 122H-A-0018, 122H-A-019, 122H-A-
020, 122H-A-021, 122H-A-022, 122H-A-023, 122H-A-024, 122H-A-025, 122H-A-026, 122H-A-027, 
122H-A-028, 122H-A-029, 122H-A-030, 122H-A-031, 122H-A-032, 122H-A-033, 122H-A-034, 122H-B-
001, 122H-B-002, 122H-B-003, 122H-B-004, 122H-B-005, 122H-B-006, 122H-B-007, 122H-B-008, 
122H-B-009, 122H-B009.01, 122H-B-009.03, 122H-B-009.04, 122H-B-009.05, 122H-B-009.06, 122H-B-
009.07, 122H-B-017, 122H-B-018, 122-H-B-019, 122H-B-020, 122H-B-021, 122H-B-022, 122H-B-023, 
122H-B-024, 122H-B-026, 122H-B-027, 122H-B-028, 122H-B-029, 122H-B-030, 122H-B-031, 122H-B-
032, 122H-B-33, 122H-B-034, 122H-B-035, 122H-B-036, 122H-B-037, 122H-B-038, 122H-B-038.01, 
122H-B-038.02, 122H-B-038.03, 122H-B-038.04, 122H-B-038.05, 122H-B-038.06, 122H-B-046, 122H-
B-047, 122H-B-048, 122H-B-050, 122H-B-051, 122H-B-053, 122H-B-054, 122H-B-055, 122H-B-056, 
122H-B-057, 122H-B-058, 122H-B-059, 122H-B-060, 122H-B-061, 122H-B-062, 122H-B-063, 122-H-B-
064, 122-H-B-065, 122H-B-066, 122H-B-067, 122H-B-068, 122H-B-069, 122J-A-001,   122J-A-002, 
122J-A-003, 122J-A-004, 122J-A-005, 122J-A-006, 122J-A-007, 122J-A-008, 122J-A-009, 122J-A-012, 
122J-A-013, 122J-A-014, 122J-A-015, 122J-A-016, 122J-A-017, 122J-A-018, 122J-A-019, 122J-A-020, 
122J-A-021, 122J-A-022, 122J-A-023, 122J-A-025, 122J-A-026, 122J-A-027, 122J-A-028, 122J-A-029, 
122J-A-030, 122J-A-031, 122J-A-032, 122J-A-033, 122J-A-034, 122J-A-035, 122J-A-036, 122J-A-037, 
122J-A-038, 122J-B-001, 122J-B-002, 122J-B-003, 122J-B-004, 122J-B-005, 122J-B-006, 122J-B-007, 
122J-B-008, 122J-B-009, 122J-B-010, 122J-B-011,122J-B-012, 122J-B-013, 122J-B-014, 122J-B-015, 
122J-B-016, 122J-B-016.01, 122J-C-001, 122J-C-002, 122J-C-003, 122J-C-004, 122J-C-005, 122J-
C006, -122J-C-007, 122J-C-008, 122J-C-009, 122J-C-010, 122J-C-011, 122J-C-011.01, 122J-C-012, 
122J-C-013, 122J-C-014, 122J-C-015, 122J-C-016, 122J-C-017, 122J-C-018, 122J-C-019, 122J-C-020, 
122J-C-021, 122J-C-022, 122J-C-023, 122N-A-035, 122N-A-036, 122N-A-037, 122N-A-038, 122N-A-
039, 122N-A-040, 122N-A-041, 122N-D-003, 122N-D-004, 122N-D-005, 122N-D-007, 122N-D-008, 
122N-D-009, 1220-A-001, 122O-A-002, 122O-A-004, 122O-A-005, 122O-A-006, 122O-A-007, 122O-A-
008, 122O-A-009, 122O-A-010, 122O-A-011, 122O-A-12, 122O-A-013, 122O-A-014, 122O-A-015, 
122O-A-016, 122O-A-017, 122O-A-018, 122O-A-019, 122O-A-020, 122O-A-021, 122O-A-022, 122O-A-
023, 122O-A-024, 122O-A-025, 122O-A-026, 122O-A-027, 122O-A-028, 122O-A-029, 122O-A-030, 
122O-A-031, 122O-A-032, 122O-A-033, 122O-A-034, 122O-A-035, 122O-A-036, 122O-A-037, 122O-A-
038, 122O-A-039, 122O-A-040, 122O-B-001, 122O-B-002, 122O-B-003, 122O-B-004, 122O-B-005, 
122O-B-006, 122O-B-007, 122O-B-008, 122O-B-009, 122O-B-010, 131-099.05, 131-099.06, 131B-A-
026, 131B-A-027, 131B-A-028, 131B-A-029, 131B-A-030, 131B-B-002, 131B-B-003, 131B-B-004, 131B-
B-005, 131B-B-006, 131B-B-007, 131B-B-008, 131B-B-009, 131B-B-010, 131B-B-011, 131B-B-012, 
131B-C-001, 131B-C-002, 131B-C-003, 131B-C-004, 131B-C-005, 131B-C-006, 131B-C-007, 131B-C-



 

 

008, 131B-C-009, 131B-C-010, 131B-C-011, 131B-C-0112, 131B-C-013, 131B-C-014, 131B-C-015, 
131B-C-016, 131B-C-017, 131B-C-018, 131B-C-019, 131B-C-020, 131B-C-021, 131B-C-022, 131B-C-
023, 131B-C-024, 131B-C-025, 131B-C-026, 131B-C-027, 131B-C-028, 131B-C-029, 131B-C-030, 
131B-C-031, 131B-C-032, 131B-C-033, 131B-D-001,  131B-D-002, 131B-D-003, 131B-D-004, 131B-D-
005, 131B-D-006, 131B-D-007, 131B-D-008, 131B-D-009, 131B-D-010, 131B-D-011, 131B-D-012, 
131B-D-013, 131B-D-014, 131B-D-015, 131B-D-016, 131B-D-017, 131B-D-018, 131B-D-019, 131B-D-
020, 131B-D-021, 131B-D-022, 131B-D-023, 131B-D-025, 131B-D-026, 131B-D-027, 131B-E-001, 
131B-E-002, 131G-B-001,131G-B-002, 131G-B-003, 131G-B-004, 131G-C-001, 131G-C-002, 131G-C-
003, 131G-C-004, 131G-C-005, 131G-C-006, 131G-C-007, 131G-C-008, 131G-C-009, 131G-C-010, 
131G-C-011, 131G-C-012, 131G-C-013, 131G-C-014, 131G-C-015, 131G-C-016, 131G-C-017, 131G-C-
018, 131G-C-019, 131G-C-020, 131G-C-021, 131G-C-022, 131G-C-023, 131G-C-024, 131G-C-025, 
131G-C-026, 131G-C-027, 131G-C-028, 131G-C-029, 131G-C-030, 131G-C-031, 131G-C-032, 131G-C-
033, 131G-C-034, 131G-C-035, 131G-C-036, 131G-C-037, 131G-C-038, 131G-C-039, 131G-C-040, 
131G-C-041, 131G-C-042, 131G-C-043, 131G-C-044, 131G-C-045, 131G-C-046, 131G-C-047, 131G-C-
048, 131G-C-049, 131G-C-050, 131G-C-051, 131G-C-052, 131G-C-053, 131G-C-054, 131G-C-055, 
131G-C-056, 131G-C-057, 131G-C-058, 131G-C-059, 131G-C-060, 131G-C-061, 131G-C-062, 131G-C-
063, 131G-C-064, 131G-C-065, 131G-C-066, 131G-C-067, 131G-C-068, 131G-C-069, 131G-C-071, 
131G-C-072, 131G-C-073, 131G-C-074, 131G-C-075, 131G-C-076, 131G-C-077, 131G-C-078, 131G-C-
079, 131G-C-080, 131G-C-081, 131G-C-082, 131G-C-083, 131G-C-084, 131G-C-085, 131G-C-086, 
131G-D-001, 131G-D-002, 131G-D-003, 131G-D-004, 131G-D-005, 131G-D-006,  131G-D-007,  131G-
D-008,131G-D-009, 131G-D-010, 131G-D-011, 131G-D-012, 131G-D-013, 131G-D-015, 131G-D-016, 
131G-D-017, 131G-D-018, 131G-D-019, 131G-D-020 , 131G-D-021, 131G-D-022, 131G-D-023, 131G-
D-024, 131G-D-025, 131G-D-026, 131G-D-027, 131G-D-028, 131G-D-029, 131G-D-030, 131G-D-031, 
131G-D-032, 131G-E-002,  131G-E-003, 131G-E-004, 131G-E-005, 131G-E-006, 131G-E-007, 131G-E-
008, 131G-E-009, 131G-E-010, 131G-E-011, 131G-E-012, 131G-E-013, 131G-E-014, 131G-E-015, 
131G-E-016, 131G-E-017, 131G-E-018, 131G-E-019, 131G-E-020, 131G-E-021, 131G-E-022,  
& 131G-E-023. 
 
 

  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































No. 914-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM C-2 LOCAL 
BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT AND R-2A RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
1708 CRABTREE ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Robert Chuba petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from C-2 Local Business Commercial 
District and R-2A Rural Residential District, property located at 1708 Crabtree Road, 
and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be 
approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Robert Chuba requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on September 
17, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be 
amended to rezone from C-2 Local Business Commercial District and R-2A Rural Residential District, 
property located at 1708 Crabtree Road, Part of Lot 1 of the Edgar Dobbins Subdivision, Plat Book 94, 
Page, 118, ROHC, being the property described in Deed Book 9383, Page 938, ROHC.  Part of Tax 
Map 083-075 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 











No. 914-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ACCEPT A U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 2014 PORT SECURITY GRANT AND 
AMENDING THE CAPITAL BUDGET OF THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE BY ADDING $59,000 
TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County has been awarded a $44,250 grant from the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security 2014 Port Security Grant Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grant will be used to purchase marine equipment at an estimated value of $27,000 (or 
75% of $36,000) and the cost of two years of warranty insurance coverage for prior grant purchases at 
an estimated value of $17,250 (or 75% of $23,000).  This equipment will provide additional 
opportunities for monitoring, enhanced surveillance, protection, detection, response and recovery 
efforts to the Port of Chattanooga and other areas of the county where needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, a match of 25% or $14,750 will be required by the Hamilton County General 
Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the match of $14,750 and the award of $44,250 will equal a total project cost of 
$59,000. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
THE COUNTY MAYOR IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT A U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 
HOMELAND SECURITY 2014 PORT SECURITY GRANT, AND THE CAPITAL BUDGET OF 
THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE IS AMENDED BY ADDING $59,000 TO REVENUES AND 
EXPENDITURES. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLICE WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 914-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 
THE TOWN OF WALDEN, TENNESSEE, IN ORDER TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT 
SERVICES AND RELATED VEHICLE EXPENSES BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2017, WHICH IS MUTUALLY RENEWABLE FOR AN ADDITIONAL 
THREE PERIODS OF THREE YEARS EACH.   ADDITIONALLY THE TOWN OF WALDEN 
WILL REIMBURSE THE PURCHASE TWO AUTOMOBILES. 
 
WHEREAS, Walden has agreed to pay $112,000 for “police services” and $15,000 for 
“vehicle related expenses” on an annual basis, in quarterly installments, for a total of 
$127,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office originally budgeted $130,470 from a prior contract for FY 
2015, and must now make an adjustment to decrease its’ budget by a corresponding amount of 
$3,470; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Walden has agreed to reimburse the Sheriff for the purchase of two fully 
equipped automobiles Tennessee for $30,316 each, or a total of $60,632, which was not 
included in the Sheriff’s proposed FY 2015 budget; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
To approve the contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the Town of Walden, by increasing the 
Sheriff’s Capital Budget revenue and expenditure budget by $60,632 and decreasing the Sheriff’s Fund 
revenue and expense budget by $3,470 for FY 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF WALDEN, TENNESSEE,  

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE AND 
THE HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
FOR THE PROVISION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 

 
Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §5-1-113 and 12-9-101 et seq., better known as 

the Interlocal Cooperation Act, the Town of Walden, which is located in Hamilton County, 

Tennessee (hereinafter referred to as the “Town”), the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Sheriff”) and Hamilton County, Tennessee, (hereinafter referred 

to as the “County”) do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Term.  This Interlocal Agreement (this “Agreement”) shall be deemed effective 

upon execution and approval by all parties, and shall continue thereafter until June 30, 2017 (the 

“Initial Term”). Upon the completion of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically 

renew for three (3) successive periods of three (3) years each (each a “Renewal Term”).  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any party may terminate this Agreement upon one hundred and 

twenty (120) days' written notice to the other parties. The provisions of this Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect throughout any Renewal Term.  

2. Law Enforcement Services.  The Sheriff agrees to provide the Town with 

customary law enforcement services, which shall include without limitation the following 

services (collectively referred to as the “Law Enforcement Services”): 

a. Law enforcement protection twenty-four (24) hours per day by an officer assigned 

primarily to the Town, seven (7) days per week, such law enforcement protection 

including but not limited to the regular patrol of the Town; patrol of Town owned 

property, specifically including Falling Water Park and the McCoy Property, the 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 1 



enforcement of curfews, towing of cars parked in violation of a Town Ordinance, 

and enforcement of all other Ordinances and Regulations of the Town. 

b. Investigative services to investigate all homicides, sex crimes, burglaries, thefts, 

fires, property damage, vandalism, and other crimes. 

c. Investigative services for all fatal accidents and hits and runs, including 

reconstruction of such accidents as the Sheriff may order, and other services as 

needed through the Traffic Division. 

d. Utilization of the Narcotics Division, K-9 Unit, Tactical Unit, and Crime 

Prevention Education units on an as needed basis. 

e. Service and issuance of citations (upon forms to be provided by the Town) to 

Town Court for violations of applicable Town Ordinances or Regulations, 

including without limitation violations of Town Ordinances or Regulations 

relating to the Falling Water Park (the “Town Citations”), not to exceed thirty 

(30) citations per calendar year.  Service of over thirty (30) Town Citations in any 

one (1) calendar year will be provided at the cost of ten ($10.00) dollars per 

citation.   

f. Appearance by officers at Town Court hearings relating to the Town Citations; 

provided, however, that Town Court shall be held no more than four (4) times per 

calendar year. 

g. Provision of a monthly report to the Town of all law enforcement activities 

occurring within the Town and the appearance of a member of the Sheriff's Office 

at the monthly Town meetings to discuss the law enforcement activities and to 

answer questions relating to the same. 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 2 



h. Such additional services as are necessary, in the Sheriff’s reasonable discretion, or 

reasonably requested by the Town for the health and safety of persons and 

property within the Town. 

3. Annual Payment.  The Town agrees to pay to the Sheriff each year during the 

Initial Term annual payments in the amount of One Hundred and Twelve Thousand Dollars 

($112,000.00) for the provision of the Law Enforcement Services (the “Annual Payment”) as set 

forth more particularly in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.  The Town shall 

make its payments to the Sheriff in quarterly payments of Twenty-eight Thousand and no/100 

Dollars ($28,000.00), due on July 1st, October 1st, January 1st, and April 1st of each year.  Annual 

Payments for any Renewal Term shall be also be made quarterly on the dates set forth above.  

After the Initial Term and during each Renewal Term, the Sheriff, by written notice and the 

provision of satisfactory evidence to the Town, may increase the Annual Payment to correspond 

to increases in costs relating to officer pay and benefits, but in no event shall such increase be 

more than four (4) percent from the prior year.   

4. Patrol Car Reimbursement.  Within thirty (30) days following the execution of 

this Agreement and upon receipt of satisfactory evidence of costs, the Town shall reimburse the 

Sheriff the sum of Sixty Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-Two dollars ($60,632.00) for two (2) 

fully equipped patrol vehicles and other equipment which is reasonably necessary for the 

implementation of this Agreement as set forth more particularly in Exhibit A attached hereto and 

made a part hereof (the “Patrol Car Reimbursement”).  Once during each Renewal Term and 

upon receipt of satisfactory evidence of costs, the Town shall pay to the Sheriff the Patrol Car 

Reimbursement.  If this Agreement is terminated by either party pursuant to Section 1 prior to 

the expiration of the Initial Term, or any Renewal Term, then the Sheriff shall refund to the 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 3 



Town the prorata share of the Patrol Car Reimbursement.  By way of example, if this Agreement 

were terminated by the Sherriff effective as of June 30, 2016, then the Sheriff would be obligated 

to reimburse the Town an amount equal to $20,210.  

5. Maintenance Reimbursement.  The Town shall reimburse the Sheriff for the 

liability self-insurance assessment for the patrol vehicles, and the patrol vehicles’ maintenance, 

and fuel in the amount of Fifteen Thousand dollars ($15,000.00) as set forth more particularly in 

Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof Services (the “Maintenance Reimbursement”), 

to be paid in quarterly payments of Three Thousand, Seven Hundred and Fifty dollars 

($3,750.00), due on July 1st, October 1st, January 1st, and April 1st of each year.  After the Initial 

Term and during each Renewal Term, the Sheriff, by written notice and the provision of 

satisfactory evidence to the Town, may increase the Maintenance Reimbursement to correspond 

to increases in costs relating to maintenance, insurance and fuel, but in no event shall such 

increase be more than four (4) percent from the prior year.   

6. Duties of the Sheriff.  The Sheriff shall be responsible for the provision of all 

equipment necessary for the Law Enforcement Services and the payment of all salaries, taxes 

and insurance related to or required in connection with the Law Enforcement Services, including 

workers' compensation and any payment due to officers for overtime. 

7. Joint and Several Responsibility.  The Sheriff and the County shall assume joint 

and several responsibility for all duties related to the Law Enforcement Services, and for any and 

all acts or omissions of the Sheriff or any deputy, officer, employee, or agent under the Sheriff’s 

direction in the course and scope of his or her duties while performing the Law Enforcement 

Services or otherwise acting on behalf of the Sheriff or the County.  The Sheriff and the County, 

jointly and severally, will defend, indemnify and hold the Town harmless from and against any 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 4 



damages, claims, costs or liability relating to or arising from the acts or omissions of any deputy, 

officer, employee, or agent under the Sheriff's discretion, including all reasonable attorneys’ fees 

and court costs. 

8. Town Representations and Warranties.  The Town represents and warrants to 

the Sheriff and the County that the Town has duly authorized and approved this Agreement and 

the same has been duly noted on the minutes of the official records of the Town. 

9. County Representations and Warranties.  The Sheriff and the County each 

represent and warrant to the Town that the Sheriff and the County each has the power and 

authority to enter this Agreement and this Agreement has been duly authorized and approved by 

the Sheriff and the legislative body of the County. 

10. Notice.  All payments, notices, and any other communications required by or 

related to this Agreement shall be delivered to the appropriate party at the address listed below, 

or such other address as the party may designate by written notice to the other parties. Any notice 

or other item to be delivered by either party to the other shall be deemed delivered when 

delivered by hand or by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, and addressed 

as follows: 

The Town: Town of Walden, Tennessee 
1836 Taft Highway 
P.O. Box 335 
Signal Mountain, Tennessee 37377 
Attn: Town Recorder 

 
With a copy to: Chambliss, Bahner & Stophel, P.C. 

Liberty Tower 
605 Chestnut Street, Suite 1700 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37450 
Attn:  Michael J. Stewart 

 
 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 5 



The Sheriff: Hamilton County Sherriff's Office 
600 Market Street 
Chattanooga, Tennessee  37402 
Attn:  Sheriff Jim Hammond 

 
The County: Hamilton County, Tennessee 

208 Courthouse 
625 Georgia Avenue 
Chattanooga, TN 37402 
Attn:  Mayor Jim Coppinger 

 
With a copy to: Bell & Hobbs 

701 Market Street 
Suite 1217 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
Attn:  R. Dee Hobbs 

 
11. Remedies.  Upon a breach of this Agreement by any party, the non-breaching 

party(ies) shall have available to it all remedies available at law or in equity.  In any litigation 

between any parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reimbursement 

from the non-prevailing party(ies) all reasonable expenses and court costs, including reasonable 

attorney's fees actually incurred.   

12. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the 

parties, and this Agreement shall not be modified or amended unless documented in a written 

agreement signed by the parties.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original, and all of which, together, shall constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

 
[Signature Page(s) Attached] 

 
 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 6 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date 

set forth below.   

 
TOWN OF WALDEN, TENNESSEE 
 
 
       
Town of Walden Mayor 
Printed Name:       
Date:         
 
 
 
HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
 
 
       
Hamilton County Mayor 
Printed Name:       
Date:         
 
 
 
       
Hamilton County Commission Chairman 
Printed Name:       
Date:         
 
 
 
HAMILTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S 
OFFICE 
 
 
       
Hamilton County Sheriff 
Printed Name:       
Date:         

 
 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 7 



EXHIBIT A 

 
Walden Contract 

ITEM  New Cost(2014 Contract)  

  OFFICERS PAY $112,000.00 
with Benefits   

  VEHICLES X 2 $43,300.00 
Lightbar, cage, elec $7,632.00 
Arbitrator $8,800.00 
Radio 

 Stenciling (decal 
wrap) $900.00 
TOTAL for CARS $60,632.00 

  
  Insurance, maint, etc $15,000.00 
and fuel,  

 
  TOTAL $187,632.00 

 

01468_00/8101/KWY-1995380_6 



No. 914-18 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OR BOND 
ANTICIPATION NOTES IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT ESTIMATED NOT 
TO EXCEED $3,073,749 AND TO REIMBURSE THE GENERAL FUND WITH THE 
PROCEEDS OF SUCH BONDS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES MADE IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Legislative Body of Hamilton County, Tennessee (the “County”) has determined that 
a need exists for the acquisition, construction and equipping of various public works 
capital projects expended in the fiscal year 2014-2015 general fund capital outlay budget 
(the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the County has included in its fiscal year 2014-2015 capital outlay budget that the 
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project will require expenditures  
estimated not to exceed $3,073,749; and 

WHEREAS, to provide financing for the Project, including reimbursement to the County for certain 
expenditures previously incurred, the County intends to issue general obligation bonds or 
bond anticipation notes in one or more series (collectively, the “Bonds”) in an aggregate 
principal amount estimated not to exceed $3,073,749. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

1. The County does hereby declare that it intends to issue the Bonds under and in 
accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Tennessee in an aggregate principal amount 
necessary to finance the cost of the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project and the 
expenses incidental to the issuance of the Bonds, estimated not to exceed $3,073,749, upon such terms 
and conditions as may be agreed upon by the County and the purchasers of the Bonds. 

2. The County reasonably expects to reimburse the General Fund for capital expenditures 
made in connection with the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, including 



 

 

expenditures for engineering, real property, environmental and other studies and certain architectural 
and other activities, including the acquisition of certain equipment, to be undertaken prior to the 
execution and delivery of the Bonds, from the proceeds of such Bonds which are reasonably expected 
to be executed and delivered within eighteen months from the later of (i) the expenditure for payment 
of said costs or (ii) the placing of the Project in service. 

3. The County Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized, directed and designated to act 
on behalf of the County for the purpose of determining and itemizing all such capital expenditures 
which the County reasonably expects to reimburse the General Fund for in connection with the 
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 914-19 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ONE (1) MOBILE COMMAND CENTER, 
EQUIPMENT, MOBILE SOLUTIONS SOFTWARE AND MAINTENANCE AMOUNTING TO 
$30,357.37 FROM BEELER IMPRESSION FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the quotation received for one (1) mobile command center, equipment, Mobile 

Solutions software and maintenance amounting to $30,357.37 for Emergency Services; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Beeler Impression is the sole authorized point of sales and support for the Chattanooga 

area for this product; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of $30,357.37 is considered economically fair; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this purchase is totally funded by a federal grant through the Tennessee Valley 

Authority and Tennessee Emergency Management Agency (TEMA); and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from Beeler Impression for one (1) mobile command center, equipment, Mobile 
Solutions software and maintenance for Emergency Services amounting to $30,357.37 is hereby 
accepted, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 









No. 914-20 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION OF SAI INTERACTIVE, INC. D/B/A 
THINKING MEDIA FOR LEARNING BLADE SITE SOFTWARE FOR HAMILTON COUNTY 
MIDDLE SCHOOLS AMOUNTING TO $48,000.00 AND TO AMEND THE GENERAL FUND 
BUDGET FROM PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGETED FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received for Learning Blade Site software amounting to $48,000.00 for 

implementation and availability to all Hamilton County middle schools in the 2014-15 
school year; and, 

 
WHEREAS, this software introduces students to STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and 

Math) technologies and career opportunities with exercises linked to academic 
standards; and, 

 
WHEREAS, SAI Interactive, Inc d/b/a Thinking Media is the sole source vendor for Learning Blade 

Site software; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of $48,000.00 is considered economically fair. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from SAI Interactive, Inc. d/b/a Thinking Media for Learning Blade Site software 
amounting to $48,000.00 for Hamilton County middle schools and to amend the General Fund budget 
from previously unbudgeted funds is hereby accepted and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 





No. 914-21 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH ARTECH DESIGN GROUP, INC. FOR FINAL 
DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE DALLAS BAY FIREHALL #2 ADDITION FOR AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $178,511.00. 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 414-12 was approved by this Legislative Body on April 2, 

2014 approving the firm of Artech Design Group, Inc. for the 
preliminary design of the Dallas Bay Firehall #2 Addition; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 214-34 was approved by this Legislative Body on  
 February 19, 2014 approving the firm of Artech Design Group, Inc.  
 to design the Dallas Bay Firehall #2 Addition; and, 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the total amount of the final design phase of the contract shall not 

exceed $178,511.00 without approval by the County Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  there are sufficient funds available for this project in the County’s  
 line of credit; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute an 
agreement with Artech Design Group, Inc. to provide architectural 
design services for the Dallas Bay Firehall #2 Addition for an amount 
not to exceed $178,510.00. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 











No. 914-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH MICHAEL BRADY, INC. FOR FINAL DESIGN 
SERVICES FOR THE SALE CREEK VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 
HEADQUARTERS FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $226,500.00. 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 414-13 was approved by this Legislative Body on April 2, 

2014 approving the firm of Michael Brady, Inc. for the preliminary 
design of the Sale Creek Volunteer Fire Department Headquarters; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 214-36 was approved by this Legislative Body on February 

19, 2014 approving the firm of Michael Brady, Inc. to design the Sale 
Creek Volunteer Fire Department Headquarters; and, 

 
 
WHEREAS,  the total amount of the final design phase of the contract shall not 

exceed $226,500.00 without approval by the County Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  there are sufficient funds available for this project in the County’s line 

of credit;  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute an 
agreement with Michael Brady, Inc. to provide architectural design 
services for the Sale Creek Volunteer Fire Department Headquarters 
for an amount not to exceed $226,500.00. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 23, 2014 

  
Date 

 













No. 914-23 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

  
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH HEFFERLIN + KRONENBERG ARCHITECTS, 
PLLC, FOR FINAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE NEW TRI-COMMUNITY 
FIREHALL #3 FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $125,983.00. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 414-14 was approved by this Legislative Body on April 2, 

2014 approving the firm of Hefferlin + Kronenberg Architects. for the 
preliminary design of the Tri-Community Firehall #2 Addition; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 214-35 was approved by this Legislative Body on February 

19, 2014 approving the firm of Hefferlin + Kronenberg Architects to 
design a new Tri-Community Firehall #3; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the total amount of the final design phase of the contract shall not 

exceed $125,983.00 without approval by the County Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  there are sufficient funds available for this project in the County’s line 

of credit; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute an 
agreement with Hefferlin + Kronenberg Architects to provide 
architectural design services for the new Tri-Community Firehall #3 
for an amount not to exceed $125,983.00. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 











No. 914-24 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT WITH RAGAN-SMITH ASSOCIATES, INC  
FOR THE DESIGN OF THE OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD AT MOUNTAIN 
VIEW ROAD/BLANCHE ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS FOR AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,500.00 OF PREVIOUSLY BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 712-25 was approved by this Legislative Body on July 18, 

2012 for Agreement No. 120084 with the Tennessee Department of 
Transportation for the improvement of the intersection at Ooltewah-
Georgetown Road at Mountain View Road/Blanche Road; and; 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 113-13 was approved by this Legislative Body on January 

16, 2013 for preliminary engineering and environmental phase 
services provided by Ragan-Smith Associates; and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Right Of Way (ROW) services provided by Ragan-Smith 

Associates, Inc. are in accordance with the qualifications and 
procurement requirements of the State of Tennessee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the design contract includes $40,500.00 for Right of Way (ROW) 

phase; and, 
 
WHEREAS, 80% of the cost will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the 

Federal Highway Administration per Tennessee Department of 
Transportation Agreement No. 120084. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the firm of Ragan-Smith Associates, Inc. is approved to design 
the Ooltewah-Georgetown Road at Mountain View Road/Blanche 
Road Intersection Improvements for an amount not to exceed 
$40,500.00 of which 80% of the cost will be reimbursed by the 
Federal Highway Administration. 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 



 

 

ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 



315 WOODLAND ST.  P.O. BOX 60070  NASHVILLE, TN 37206 • (615) 244-8591 • (615) 244-6739 (fax) • WWW.RAGANSMITH.COM

12-060 
9607 

August 20, 2014

VIA EMAIL:   autumnf@mail.hamiltontn.gov

Ms. Autumn Friday
Engineering Project Manager
Hamilton County Government, Engineering Department
1250 Market Street, Suite 3050
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402-2713

RE: INTERSECTION AT OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN AT
MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD/BLANCHE ROAD
PIN 117363.00, HAMILTON COUNTY PROJECT NO. 11-205
HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

Dear Autumn:

Ragan-Smith-Associates, Inc. is pleased to provide the following proposal for Professional Services for the
Ooltewah-Georgetown project to Hamilton County.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

The Ooltewah-Georgetown/Mountain View/Blanche Road intersection improvement has been planned by the
Hamilton County Engineering Department, with the preferred alternative design to include a modern
roundabout.  The project has been initiated with the TDOT Local Programs Development Office and a NEPA
Notice to Proceed has been issued.  The existing intersection has experienced a significant crash history,
which has improved somewhat due to the installation of flashing beacons.  The purpose and need for this
project are primarily to provide for safe and efficient movement of vehicles through the project area. The
roundabout design intends to provide increased safety performance with anticipated reduction in fatalities,
injury crashes and overall crashes, and will also effectively decrease travel speeds throughout the
roundabout influence area.  Lower speeds will also provide for safer crossings and larger, more usable gaps
in traffic flow for both vehicular and non-vehicular users. 

The following elements will be part of the project development: 

Environmental Compliance
Topographic Surveying, Property, and Utility Mapping
Roadway, Intersection, and Traffic Control Design
Hydraulics and Permitting
Construction Bid Document Development and Bid Opening
Construction Engineering and Inspection

INFORMATION AVAILABLE

• RFP dated September 4, 2012 including reference to TDOT Locally Managed Programs Guidelines
• I-75/ Ooltewah - Georgetown Road preliminary schematic interchange layouts (2)
• Crash Data before and after installation of the flashing beacon
• Project scope meetings with County Engineering Department staff
• Hamilton County GIS tax map data
• Field reconnaissance
• Email dated October 25, 2012 with clarifications
• TDOT Local Programs Guidelines (January 1, 2014)
• TDOT Design Guidelines - Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Design of Roundabouts
• Ooltewah-Ringgold Road at Standifer Gap Road Preliminary Layout (05/31/12) 



Ms. Autumn Friday
Page 2
August 20, 2014

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of services for this project has been broken down into three parts at the request of Hamilton
County and includes the PE-NEPA Phase to Right-of-Way Notice to Proceed, Right-of-Way Phase to the
Construction Notice to Proceed, and the Construction Administration/Construction Engineering Inspection
Phase.

The description of the scope of service phases is detailed below:

I. PE- NEPA Phase

The PE-NEPA phase for the project has recently been completed and focused on NEPA document
approval and preliminary engineering.  During the engineering development, Ragan-Smith developed
a multilane roundabout designed to accommodate future traffic volumes.  Once the multilane roundabout
was designed, the roadway plans were developed as a single lane roundabout in the footprint of the
multilane roundabout.  This design approach allows for future expansion of the intersection with reduced
future cost to the County and minimal impact to adjacent properties and traffic operations.   

The right-of-way plans for the project have been approved, and the right-of-way notice to proceed was
received August 15, 2014.

II. Right-of-Way Phase

With the right-of-way NTP in place, the right-of-way phase can be initiated and will include:

Right-of-Way Documents - Right-of-way exhibits and descriptions will be completed for the County and
right-of-way agent to prepare appraisals and offers for all property. Subsequent to the notice to proceed,
the County will initiate acquisition.  Additionally, Ragan-Smith will attend public meetings as necessary.

Utility Coordination - The right-of-way phase will also include utility coordination to establish utility needs
and adjustments within the project limits. Both right-of-way and utility processes must be certified as part
of the TDOT Local Programs Guidelines.  Ragan-Smith will assist the County by leading a kickoff
meeting, providing all required plans and files, coordinating on utility relocation plans and assisting
County staff with County approval. 

Permits - Environmental stormwater permits  though USACE and TDEC will be pursued in this phase and
will require the completion and submittal of a stormwater pollution prevention plan.  All permits must be
in place and submitted to TDOT for a permit certification prior to receiving a construction NTP.

Traffic Control and Construction Phasing - The plans for traffic control and construction phasing will be
developed with input from Ragan-Smith CEI staff and County personnel to understand limitations,
minimize disruption and provide for worker safety.  The challenge of the phasing is related to the
significant grading that will be needed while the project maintains traffic operations for all four intersection
legs.  Providing clear detailed direction to the contractor on how the project is to be phased and what
closures will be allowed will take some of the guesswork out of the project for the contractor.  The
additional detail and guidance should result in better bid prices.  The erosion control plans will need to
be developed in conjunction with the construction phasing.  

Construction Drawings - After right-of-way acquisition is underway, the design team will complete the
plans development process by preparing construction plans, quantity estimates, and the construction
special notes and details for the project.  Anticipated plan elements include: construction and roundabout
details, detailed proposed grading information, updated profiles with drainage/utility/ superelevation data,
traffic control and construction phasing (as detailed above), sight distance analysis and landscaping plan
development, as well as appropriate quantity tabulations and notes.  The plans will be independently
reviewed to ensure clear direction is provided to the contractor.



Ms. Autumn Friday
Page 3
August 20, 2014

Bid Books - The construction manual or bid book will be coordinated with the County and include all
contractual requirements for the construction bid along with complete specifications for the project.  The
bid book will utilize TDOT standard contracts and bond requirements and also be checked to comply with
the requirements of Hamilton County.  The bid book will also contain the bid form for the project which
will identify all items and quantities for the base bid.  The draft bid letting advertisement, Title VI
coordination and DBE goal establishment will be completed at this time as well.

The final design development phase of the project will include submittals for the necessary approvals,
certifications and permits for the project and provide the necessary detail to elicit a competitive bid and
award of the construction contract.  The conclusion of this phase will be at the time of a TDOT NTP with
Construction.

III. Construction Administration/ Construction Engineering and Inspection Phase

This phase of the project development will include engineering and inspection staff responsibilities. The
engineering staff tasks will include bid advertisement, bid opening, tabulation and review of bids for
materially and mathematically unbalanced bids,  requests for TDOT concurrence, award assistance,
preconstruction meetings, shop drawing review, and other engineer of record construction phase tasks.

The project construction will be managed locally utilizing the requirements of the TDOT Local Programs
Office.  TDOT requires comprehensive Construction Engineering and Inspection (CEI) on Federally
funded projects according to the scope of services established by the TDOT Construction Division.
According to the TDOT scope of work, the CEI consultant must be on site for observation, inspection,
and documentation on a full time basis during the term of the construction.  

CEI inspection staff responsibilities will include participation in bid procedures, pre-construction meetings,
and all required scheduled meetings with TDOT and FHWA.   The CEI project manager and staff will be
responsible for all paperwork, documentation and reporting for the project as well as project closeout.
As required by the scope of work shown in the RFP, the design team will support the CEI team and
contractor for the duration of construction by assisting with interpretation of plans and documents,
requests for information, and other technical or engineering support for the project.

At this time, the County has requested that a supplement for this work be developed after the
construction NTP.

COMPENSATION

The fee proposal shown below is based upon manday estimates for the individual tasks.  As stated above,
at this time the County has requested that a supplement for work under the Construction
Administration/Construction Engineering and Inspection Phase be developed after receipt of the construction
notice to proceed; therefore, this fee proposal is for Item II. Right-of-Way Phase work only.  

II. Right-of-Way Phase

Right-of-Way Documents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,000.00
Utility Coordination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    7,500.00
Permits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    2,500.00
Traffic Control and Construction Phasing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    6,250.00
Construction Drawings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,000.00
Bid Book . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    7,750.00
Direct Expenses (Budget) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       500.00

               TOTAL RIGHT-OF-WAY PHASE PROPOSAL . . . . . . . . . . . . . $40,500.00

Invoices will be based on the lump sum fees outlined above.  Travel, shipping, printing, government fees and
other such expenses directly related to the project will be billed at cost and are estimated at $500 as shown
above.   Invoices will be submitted on a monthly basis for actual hours expended and will be due and payable



Ms. Autumn Friday
Page 4
August 20, 2014

within 30 days of invoice date.  If the billings on this project become delinquent by 60 days, Ragan-Smith will
notify the client that no further work will be completed until the account is brought into balance.  Fees quoted
above will not be exceeded without the express written authorization of Hamilton County. 

Should additional work be required outside the Scope of Services noted above, said work will be mutually
agreed upon prior to commencing and billed hourly per our “Schedule of Services and Expenses” and “Contract
Terms and Conditions,” or as negotiated directly with Hamilton County.

SCHEDULE

It is anticipated that the right-of-way phase will be initiated once Commission action is taken on this
agreement.  Since the right-of-way acquisition process will dictate the schedule, the design schedule has not
been fully established.  

We are pleased to submit this proposal to Hamilton County and look forward to working with you on this
project.  If you are in agreement with the scope and terms outlined here, please sign below and return one
copy.

Sincerely,

RAGAN-SMITH-ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Joseph F. Griffin, P.E. Scott M. Niesen, P.E.
Senior Vice President Vice President

JFG/SMN:djb

Enclosures: Schedule of Services and Expenses, Contract Terms and Conditions

CLIENT ACCEPTANCE and AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED:

By:   Date:

Printed/Typed Name:   Title:



RAGAN-SMITH ASSOCIATES, INC.

February 2012

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND EXPENSES

Professional Services 

Classification Hourly Rate

Principal $165.00
Project Manager 140.00    
Professional Engineer       110.00

• Civil Engineer 
• Traffic Engineer

 • Hydrology/Hydraulics Engineer
• Environmental Engineer
• Construction Engineer

Planner   105.00
Registered Landscape Architect               105.00
Registered Land Surveyor 100.00

Technical Services

Classification Hourly Rate

Senior Designer $95.00
Designer 85.00
Senior Technician 80.00
Technician          70.00
Administrative Assistant 75.00

Construction Services

Classification Hourly Rate

Construction Manager $140.00
Senior Inspector 95.00
Inspector 75.00

Field Survey Services

Classification Hourly Rate
Two Man Survey Crew 125.00
Three Man Survey Crew 160.00

Expenses

Expenses (not limited) are not included in the service fees
of this agreement unless specifically stated.  

   Travel: Cost
  Travel and subsistence expenses 

   (lodging, meals, mileage, etc.)          
   Subcontracts:         Cost 
   Sundries / Review/Submittal Fees: Cost
   Printing/reproductions:           Commercial Rates

Review/submittal fees over $200 are to be paid by the
client directly to the jurisdictional agency.  

CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS
PARTIES, SERVICES, ASSIGNMENT AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT - Ragan-Smith-
Associates, Inc., as an independent consultant,  agrees to provide consulting services to
the Client for its sole benefit and exclusive use.  No third party beneficiaries are intended
by this Agreement.  The ordering of services from Ragan-Smith constitutes acceptance
of the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement.  This Agreement may not be
assigned by either party without prior written  permission of the other party. This
Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of Ragan-Smith and the Client and there
are no other warranties or representation made other than as set forth herein and
specifically within the Agreement.

STANDARD OF CARE - Ragan-Smith agrees to perform consulting services in
accordance with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other reputable
members of our profession under similar circumstances.  No warranty expressed or
implied is made or intended by this Agreement relating to the services provided by Ragan-
Smith.  

CONCEALED OR UNKNOWN CONDITIONS - If conditions are encountered at the site
which are concealed or unknown, then Ragan-Smith will be entitled to an equitable
adjustment in the contract sum or contract time or both.   

OPINIONS OF COST - When requested by the Client, Ragan-Smith will use its best
efforts, experience and judgment to offer an opinion of estimated construction costs.  Such
opinions are based on available historical data and are intended to provide an estimate
of cost.  No warranty of the actual construction cost is expressed or implied.

SITE ACCESS - Client will grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and
personnel necessary for Ragan-Smith to perform the services set forth in this Agreement.
Client will notify any and all tenants or possessors of the project site that Client has
granted Ragan-Smith free access to the site.

JOB SITE SAFETY - Client agrees that, in accordance with the generally accepted
construction practice, the contractor will be solely and completely responsible for working
conditions on the job site, including safety of all persons and property during the
performance of the services, and with compliance with all OSHA regulations.  Neither the
professional activities of Ragan-Smith nor the presence of Ragan-Smith or its employees
and subconsultants on the job site shall relieve the General Contractor of its
responsibilities.

INSURANCE - Ragan-Smith maintains insurance coverage including Workmans’
Compensation Insurance, Employer’s Liability Insurance, Commercial General Liability
Insurance, Automobile Liability Insurance and Professional Errors and Omission
Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance will be furnished upon request. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY - In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project
to both the Client and Ragan-Smith, the risks have been allocated such that the Client
agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the total aggregate liability of Ragan-
Smith and its sub-consultants to the Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages
of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or causes, to $50,000 or
Ragan-Smith’s total fee for services rendered on the project, whichever is greater.  Such
claims and causes include, but are not limited to, claims for negligence, professional
errors or omissions, negligent misrepresentation, strict liability, breach of contract, breach
of warranty.     

WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE - Ragan-Smith and Client waive consequential
damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating to this
Agreement.  This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential
damages including damages resulting from either party’s termination under this
Agreement.  

PAYMENT TERMS - Client will be invoiced once each month for services performed
during the preceding period.  If payment is not received within thirty (30) days of the
invoice date, the Client agrees to pay a service charge on the past due amount of one and
one half percent (1½ %) per month compounded monthly.  The Client additionally agrees
to pay all attorney fees, collection fees, court and lien costs, and other such expenditures
incurred to satisfy any unpaid balance.

LIEN RIGHTS - The parties agree that the design services provided by Ragan-Smith
under this Contract will improve the value of the real property, regardless of whether any
physical improvements are made to the property in furtherance of Ragan-Smith’s services,
and the parties agree that Ragan-Smith will have lien rights in and to the property to the
extent of the services provided by Ragan-Smith under this Agreement.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION/MEDIATION - In an effort to resolve any disputes that arise
during or subsequent to the performance of services outlined in this Agreement, the Client
and Ragan-Smith agree that all disputes shall be submitted to non-binding mediation
unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  

TERMINATION - This Agreement may be only terminated for cause upon seven (7) days
of written notice. In the event of termination, Ragan-Smith will be entitled to compensation
for all services provided and expenses incurred up to and including the termination date.



No. 914-25 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF SIXTY THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($60,000.00) IN SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS AGAINST HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, AS BROUGHT BY JOHN DOUB FOR INJURIES 
RECEIVED FROM A VEHICULAR-BICYCLE ACCIDENT OF MAY 15, 2012. 
 

WHEREAS,  litigation has been instituted against Hamilton County, 
Tennessee, by John Doub for injuries and property 
damages he received as a result of a vehicular-bicycle 
accident which occurred on or about May 15, 2012, 
involving a bicycle Mr. Doub was riding and a Hamilton 
County ambulance; and  

  
WHEREAS,   Hamilton County, Tennessee, denies any liability as 

alleged in the complaint, but deems the settlement of this 
matter to be in the best interest of the citizens of this 
County; and 

 
WHEREAS,  through negotiations with counsel for said plaintiff, 

mediation between the parties, and subject to the 
approval of this county legislative body, a settlement of 
Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000.00) has been reached 
for the complete satisfaction of any and all claims that 
said plaintiff has or might have against Hamilton County 
and its employees; and  

 
WHEREAS,  this county legislative body feels that the payment of said 

amount would be in the best interest of the citizens of 
Hamilton County, and would bring about a fair 
disposition of this matter. 

 
 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That subject to the execution of a full release satisfactory to the County 
Attorney, the payment of Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000.00) is 
hereby authorized to be paid to John Doub, including his expenses and 
attorney fees, for the full and complete settlement of any and all claims 
that said plaintiff has or might have against Hamilton County for his 
personal injuries and property damage resulting from a vehicular-
bicycle accident which occurred on or about May 15, 2012. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.   

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 914 - 26 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO CONTINUE THE CONTRACT, AS 
EXECUTED ON FEBRUARY 19, 2014 WITH THE PASSAGE OF RESOLUTION 214-32, BETWEEN THE 
STATE OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY 
HEALTH DEPARTMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF COMMUNITY HEALTH PREVENTION SERVICES 
FOR THE TIME PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018, AMENDING THE 
2014/2015 BUDGET BY INCREASING REVENUES BY $70,600 AND EXPENSES BY $70,600.  
 
WHEREAS,  Resolution 214-32 was passed on February 19, 2014 thereby approving and executing a      
                       contract between  the State of Tennessee, Department of Health and the Health Services       
                       Division of Hamilton County, Tennessee, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County  
                       Health Department, for an amount of $70,600  per year through June 2018 for the purpose of  
                       improving the health and well-being of individuals in Hamilton County through improved  
                       nutrition, physical activity, and chronic disease self-management  activities in daycares,  
                       schools, and the community at large;  and  
  
WHEREAS,  the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is seeking to continue this contractual  
                       arrangement with the State of Tennessee, Department of Health and is requesting to  amend         
                       the FY 2014/2015 budget for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, by increasing  
                       revenues by $70,600 and expenses by $70,600. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
        That the County Mayor be authorized to continue a contractual arrangement between the State  
                      of Tennessee, Department of Health and the Health Services Division, Hamilton County,  
                      Tennessee, doing business as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department for the  
                       provision of Community  Health Prevention Services by amending the FY 2014/2015 budget  
                       by increasing revenues by $70,600  and expenses by $70,600 for the time period July 1, 2014  
                       through June 30, 2015.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































































No. 914-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF FAIRWAY OUTDOOR ADVERTISING 
COMPANY FOR A TOBACCO EXPOSURE PREVENTION BILLBOARD CAMPAIGN FOR A 
PERIOD OF TWENTY (20) WEEKS, BEGINNING OCTOBER 2014, ENDING FEBRUARY 2015, 
AMOUNTING TO $28,760 FOR THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a Tobacco Exposure 

Prevention Billboard Campaign for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee, Department of Health has allocated funds to the Health 

Services Division of Hamilton County, Tennessee for the purpose of purchasing 
advertising space on billboards which promote tobacco use prevention and control; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal from Fairway Outdoor Advertising Company was considered to be the 

lowest and best proposal received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available for this campaign. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from Fairway Outdoor Advertising Company for a twenty (20) week Tobacco 
Exposure Prevention Billboard Campaign amounting to $28,760 for the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Health Department is hereby accepted, said proposal being the lowest and best proposal received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 









No. 914-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION OF SCREENVISION FOR CINEMA 
ADVERTISING COMMERCIALS FOR THE TOBACCO EXPOSURE PREVENTION CAMPAIGN 
IN LOCAL THEATRES FOR A PERIOD OF FIFTY-TWO (52) WEEKS, BEGINNING OCTOBER 
2014, AMOUNTING TO $19,732 FOR THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS 
THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a quotation was received from Screenvision for cinema advertising commercials for the 

Tobacco Exposure Prevention Campaign for the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Tennessee, Department of Health has allocated funds to the Health 

Services Division of Hamilton County, Tennessee for the purpose of purchasing 
advertising space to promote tobacco use prevention and control; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Screenvision is the sole source for advertising in local theatres; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available for this campaign. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the quotation from Screenvision for cinema advertising commercials for fifty-two (52) weeks in 
local theatres for the Tobacco Exposure Prevention Campaign amounting to $19,732 for the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is hereby accepted, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 







No. 914-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $278,600.00 TO PROVIDE CHILDHOOD 
IMMUNIZATION SERVICES IN HAMILTON COUNTY, FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2015 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2015.   
 
WHEREAS, childhood immunizations have been proven to reduce the incidence and impact of 

vaccine preventable diseases; and   
 
WHEREAS, identifying children at risk for being under immunized and following their vaccine 

status, encouraging vaccination at every opportunity has been shown to significantly 
increase the vaccination status of those children; and  

 
WHEREAS, auditing day care, primary and secondary school immunization records ensures that 

children in group settings are appropriately immunized; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health oversees the Vaccine for Children Program that 

provides vaccine to eligible children free of charge at numerous providers throughout 
Hamilton County; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Vaccine for Children’s Program requires local oversight; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health has identified continuation funding for the 

provision of these services in Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract for the provision of 
childhood immunization services for the children of Hamilton County for the period of 
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 



















































































No. 914-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO AMEND A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE 
OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, HEALTH 
SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF A RAPE PREVENTION EDUCATION PROGRAM USING FUNDS 
FROM THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$50,000.00 THEREBY REQUIRING THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT’S REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGET BE 
INCREASED BY $10,000.00 FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING NOVEMBER 1, 2013, ENDING JANUARY 31, 
2015. 
 
WHEREAS,   the State of Tennessee, Department of Health has allocated $50,000 to the Health Services     
                        Division of Hamilton County, Tennessee, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health   
                        Department, for   the purpose of providing rape prevention education services; and 
 
WHEREAS,   these services will include strengthening individual knowledge and skills, promoting   community                 
                        education, educating providers, and fostering coalitions; will also include activities to promote 
                        changes in organizational practices; and will include educating key community leaders to treat  
                        sexual violence as a public health priority; and              
 
WHEREAS,   the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is seeking to continue a contractual  
                        arrangement with the State of Tennessee, Department of Health for the provision of rape  
                        prevention education for an amount not to exceed $50,000 for the period beginning November 1,  
                        2013, ending January 31, 2015. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
         That the County Mayor be authorized to amend a contract between the State of Tennessee,  
                        Department of Health and the Health Services  Division, Hamilton County, Tennessee, doing  
                        business as the Chattanooga- Hamilton County Health Department for the provision of rape  

         prevention education services for an amount not to exceed $50,000.00, which requires that the 
         revenue and expense budget for the Health Department, for the period beginning November 1,   
         2013, ending January 31, 2015 be increased by $10,000.00. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

 























 

No. 914-31 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 17, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS RELATING TO THE VAN DE 
WIELE, INC. PROJECT, TO DELEGATE CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, AND 
TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 7-53-305(b) the County of 
Hamilton (the “County”) is permitted to delegate to The Industrial 
Development Board of the City of Chattanooga (the "Board") the authority to 
negotiate and accept payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes from lessees of the 
Board upon a finding by the County that such payments are deemed to be in 
furtherance of the Board's public purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Van De Wiele, Inc. (the “Company”) is contemplating the construction of a 
distribution facility and certain other real property improvements on certain real 
property in the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County, Tennessee, and the 
acquisition and installation of certain machinery, equipment and other personal 
property to store and distribute its products at the distribution facility to be 
constructed (collectively, the “Project”) and because of the substantial 
economic benefits to the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County resulting 
from the Project, has asked the Board and the County Commission to approve 
payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes from 
such a project would be in furtherance of the Board's public purposes as set 
forth within Chapter 53 of Title 7 of the Tennessee Code Annotated; 

 

 

 



 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COMMISSION: 

That we do hereby find that the Project is in the best interest of the County, and that payments 
in lieu of ad valorem taxes derived therefrom would be in furtherance of the Board's public 
purposes; and 

That, having made such a finding in this instance, we do hereby delegate to the Board the 
authority to negotiate and accept payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes from the Company, it 
being further noted that this delegation is for this purpose and this project only; and 

That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into an Agreement for Payments In Lieu 
Of Ad Valorem Taxes in substantially the form attached hereto, with such changes thereto as 
he shall approve; and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 17, 2014 

  
Date 

  



 1 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU 
OF AD VALOREM TAXES 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this the 

____day of ____________, 2014, by and among THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
BOARD OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA (the “Board”); VAN DE WIELE, INC., a 
North Carolina corporation (the “Company”); the CITY OF CHATTANOOGA (the “City”); 
and HAMILTON COUNTY (the “County”) and is joined in, for purposes of evidencing their 
acceptance of the agency relationship established herein, by WILLIAM F. HULLANDER and 
his successors, acting in the capacity of HAMILTON COUNTY TRUSTEE (the “Trustee”), 
and by WILLIAM C. BENNETT and his successors, acting in the capacity of HAMILTON 
COUNTY ASSESSOR OF PROPERTY (the “Assessor”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Company is contemplating (i) the acquisition of certain real 
property in Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee, as more particularly described on 
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Existing Property”); (ii) the construction 
of a new facility and other real property improvements on the Existing Property (the “Real 
Property Improvements”) (the Real Property Improvements and the Existing Property shall be 
collectively referred to as the “Real Property”); and (iii) the acquisition of machinery, equipment 
and other personal property, as more particularly described on Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the “Personal Property”) (the Personal Property and the Real Property shall 
be collectively referred to as the “Property, and the Real Property Improvements and the 
Personal Property shall be referred to as the “Project”), resulting in an investment of at least 
$5.05 million and the creation of at least 30 full-time jobs which jobs shall have an average 
annual wage (excluding benefits) equal to at least $49,000.00 between [September 1, 2014 and 
September 1, 2017] (collectively the “Investment, Jobs and Wage Projection”), and has 
requested the Board’s assistance with the Project; and 

WHEREAS, substantial economic benefits to the City and County economies 
will be derived from the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has agreed to take title to the Property, together with all 
additions thereto, replacements thereof, and substitutions therefor and to lease the Property to the 
Company pursuant to that certain Lease Agreement (the “Lease”), dated of even date herewith, 
between the Board and the Company; and 

WHEREAS, because the Property is to be owned by the Board, which is a public 
corporation organized under the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated, § 7-53-101, et seq., 
the Property will be exempt from ad valorem property taxes (“property taxes”) normally paid to 
the City and to the County, so long as the Property is owned by the Board, pursuant to the 
provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated, § 7-53-305; and 



 2 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

WHEREAS, for the public benefit of the citizens of the City and the County, the 
Board has requested that the Company make certain payments to the Board in lieu of the 
payment of property taxes that would otherwise be payable on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to make such payments to the Board in 
lieu of the property taxes otherwise payable on the Property (the “In Lieu Payments”), as more 
particularly set forth hereinafter; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has been authorized to receive the In Lieu Payments in 
lieu of property taxes by resolutions adopted by the City and the County, acting through their 
duly elected Council and Commission, respectively, which resolutions delegate to the Board the 
authority to accept the In Lieu Payments upon compliance with certain terms and conditions, 
including, without limitation, the requirement that the Board collect and expend such payments 
in furtherance of the public purposes for which the Board was created; and 

WHEREAS, the Company and the Board have agreed that all In Lieu Payments 
made to the Board by the Company shall be paid to the Trustee, who shall disburse such amounts 
to the City and the County in accordance with the requirements specified herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to designate the Assessor as its agent to appraise 
the Property and assess a percentage of its value in the manner specified herein; and  

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to designate the Trustee as its agent to receive the 
In Lieu Payments in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual covenants and 
agreements set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Designation of Assessor; Appraisal and Assessment of Property.  The 
Board hereby designates the Assessor as its agent to appraise and assess the Property.  The 
Assessor shall appraise and assess the Property in accordance with the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Tennessee as though the Property were subject to property taxes.  The Assessor shall 
give the Trustee, the City Treasurer, the Board, and the Company written notice of any changes 
in appraisals of the Property in the same manner that notices are given to owners of taxable 
property.  The Assessor shall make available to the Board and the Company all records relating 
to the appraisal and assessment of the Property.  

2. Designation of Trustee; Computation and Billing of Payments In Lieu of 
Taxes.  The Board hereby designates the Trustee as its agent to compute the amounts of the In 
Lieu Payments, to receive such payments from the Company and to disburse such payments to 
the City and the County.  On or about October 1 of each year during the term of this Agreement, 
the Trustee shall compute the taxes which would be payable on the Property if it were subject to 
property taxes, in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Tennessee and in 
accordance with the appraisal and assessment of the Assessor.  Each year hereunder, the Trustee 
shall send the Board and the Company bills for appropriate amounts of In Lieu Payments (the 
“Tax Bill”). 



 3 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

3. Payments in Lieu of Taxes.  After receipt of the Tax Bill, the Company 
shall pay to the Trustee the amounts indicated on the Tax Bill which amounts shall be 
determined in accordance with the provisions set forth below in Paragraph 4.  The In Lieu 
Payments shall be made by the Company in lieu of the property taxes which would otherwise be 
payable on the Property if it were subject to property taxes.   

4. Amount of Payments by the Company.  For the five (5) year period 
covering and inclusive of years [2016 through 2020] (the “Tax Abatement Period”), the 
Company shall make In Lieu Payments with respect to the Project in an amount, as determined 
by the Assessor and the Trustee, equal to the following percentage of the taxes that would have 
been payable on the Project if it were subject to property taxes for the respective years shown: 

 
Year 

 
City General 

Fund 

 
County General 

Fund 

 
County School 

Fund 
2016 0% 0% 100% 
2017 25% 25% 100% 
2018 40% 40% 100% 
2019 50% 50% 100% 
2020 50% 50% 100% 

 

For the avoidance of doubt, the parties intend that the Company shall make (i) In Lieu Payments 
in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of all ad valorem taxes that would be 
dedicated to the support of the County school system, which the parties acknowledge and agree 
currently equates to twenty-seven and one tenth percent (27.1%) of the amount of the total City 
and County taxes that would have been payable on the Project if it were subject to property taxes 
(the “School Portion”), and (ii) In Lieu Payments in an amount equal to the above graduated 
amounts for all other ad valorem taxes of the City and the County, excluding the educational 
portion of the County ad valorem taxes.  

For any portion of the Property other than the Project, the Company shall make In 
Lieu Payments in an amount, as determined by the Assessor and the Trustee, equal to one 
hundred percent (100%) of the amount of taxes that would have been payable on such portion of 
the Property if it were subject to property taxes.  For the avoidance of doubt, the parties intend 
that the reduced In Lieu Payments shall only apply to new investment in the Property that is 
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.   

For any periods before the Tax Abatement Period or after the Tax Abatement 
Period that the Property is owned by the Board and leased to the Company, the Company shall 
make In Lieu Payments in an amount, as determined by the Assessor and the Trustee, equal to 
one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of taxes that would have been payable on the 
Property if it were subject to property taxes.   

Notwithstanding the above, any amounts assessed as property taxes against the 
Property shall be credited against any In Lieu Payments due under this Agreement. 



 4 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

5. Penalties and Late Charges.  The Company shall make the In Lieu 
Payments for each year during the term before March 1 of the following year.  All In Lieu 
Payments shall be subject to penalties, late charges, fees and interest charges as follows: 

(a) If the Company fails to make any In Lieu Payment when due, and 
such failure to pay shall continue and not be fully paid within thirty (30) days after written notice 
of such non-payment has been provided to the Company, then a late charge shall be charged and 
shall also be immediately due and payable.  The late charge shall be in the amount of one and 
one-half percent (1-1/2%) of the owed amount.  Additional late charges of one and one-half 
percent (1-1/2%) of the amount shall accumulate and become immediately due and payable upon 
the expiration of each subsequent thirty (30) day period when there remains any outstanding 
unpaid amount. 

(b) If the Company should fail to pay all amounts and late charges due 
as provided hereinabove, then the Board, the City or the County may bring suit against the 
Company in the Chancery Court of Hamilton County to seek to recover the In Lieu Payments 
due, late charges, expenses and costs of collection in addition to reasonable attorneys’ fees.   

6. Minimum Requirements; Annual Review; Increase in Amount of In Lieu 
Payments.   

(a) Minimum Requirements.  The Company must meet one hundred 
percent (100%) of the Minimum Job Requirement and the Minimum Investment Requirement by 
[September 1, 2017] (the “Determination Date”) and during each calendar year thereafter during 
the Tax Abatement Period.  For purposes of this Section, the “Minimum Jobs Requirement” 
equals twenty-four (24) full-time jobs having an average annual wages (excluding benefits) equal 
to at least $49,000.00, and the “Minimum Investment” equals $4,004,000 (Four Million Four 
Thousand Dollars). 

(b) Annual Employment Review.  If Company fails to achieve the 
Minimum Jobs Requirement during the calendar year in which the Determination Date occurs or 
during in any calendar year thereafter during the Tax Abatement Period, the City and the County 
reserve the right but are not obligated to increase the amount of the general fund In Lieu 
Payments applicable to the Property for the same calendar year in which such failure occurs by a 
percentage equal to 100% less the "Company's Job Performance" for such calendar year (the 
"Job In Lieu Payment Percentage Increase").  The "Company's Job Performance" for any 
calendar year means the proportion, expressed as a percentage, that the average number of full-
time jobs actually maintained by the Company bears to the Minimum Job Requirement. In no 
event shall the Company’s annual General Fund In Lieu Payments exceed one hundred percent 
(100%) of the general fund taxes that would be assessed against the Project if it were subject to 
general fund taxes. 



 5 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

Example 1: 

Total number of full-time jobs for 2017 = 28  

Minimum Job Requirement = 24 

No increase in In Lieu Payments for 2017 

(Minimum Job Requirement has been exceeded) 

Example 2:       
Total number of full-time jobs for 2017 = 20 

Minimum Job Requirement = 24 

Company's Job Performance = 83.33% 

Job In Lieu Payment Percentage Increase for 2017 = 16.67%  

(In Lieu Payment Percentages for 2017 for City General Fund and County 
General Fund may each be increased by 16.67%) 

(c) Annual Investment Review.  If the Company fails to achieve the 
Minimum Investment Requirement during the calendar year in which the Determination Date 
occurs or during in any calendar year thereafter during the Tax Abatement Period, the City and 
the County reserve the right but are not obligated to increase the amount of the general fund In 
Lieu Payments applicable to the Property for the same calendar year in which such failure occurs 
by a percentage equal to 100% less the "Company's Investment Performance" for such calendar 
year (the "Investment In Lieu Payment Percentage Increase").  The "Company's Investment 
Performance" for any calendar year means the proportion, expressed as a percentage, that the 
actual aggregate capital investment made by the Company through the end of such calendar year, 
including all capital investment made in the preceding calendar years in connection with the 
Project, bears to the Minimum Investment Requirement.  In no event shall the Company’s annual 
General Fund In Lieu Payments exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the general fund taxes 
that would be assessed against the Project if it were subject to general fund taxes. 

Example 3:       

Total amount of capital investment through 2017 = $5,000,000 

Minimum Investment Requirement = $4,004,000 

No increase in In Lieu Payments for 2017 (Minimum Investment 
Requirement has been exceeded) 



 6 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

Example 4:       

Total amount of capital investment through 2017 = $3,500,000 

Minimum Investment Requirement = $4,004,000 

Company's Investment Performance = 87.41% 

Investment In Lieu Payment Percentage Increase for 2017 = 12.59% 

(In Lieu Payment Percentages for 2017 for City General Fund and County 
General Fund may each be increased by 12.59%) 

Such formula shall be evaluated on an annual basis until the Minimum Investment Requirement 
has been met or exceeded, whereupon no further evaluations or increase in the amount of the In 
Lieu Payments pursuant to this Section 6(c) shall occur.   

(d) Single Adjustment Regarding Tax Abatement; Issuance of 
Supplemental Bill to Company.  If both the annual employment review under Section 6(b) and 
the investment review under Section 6(c) for any calendar year indicate an increase in the In Lieu 
Payments for the same calendar year in which such failure occurs, and if the City and the County 
elect to increase the In Lieu Payments for such calendar year, then the City and the County shall 
determine whether the increase under Section 6(b) or Section 6(c) shall apply, which shall be the 
sole remedy for a shortfall in the Investment, Jobs and Wage Projection.  The increase under 
Section 6(b) and Section 6(c) shall not be combined.  If the City and the County increase the 
amount of the In Lieu Payments pursuant to the annual employment review under Section 6(b) 
for any calendar year, then they may not, in the same year, also increase the amount of the In 
Lieu Payments pursuant to Section 6(c), and vice versa.  For example, using Examples 2 and 4 
shown above, the City and the County may elect to either (i) increase the amount of the In Lieu 
Payments to the City General Fund and the County General Fund under Section 6(b) by 16.67% 
or (ii) increase the amount of the In Lieu Payments to the City General Fund and the County 
General Fund under Section 6(c) by 12.59%.  In accordance with the foregoing and once a 
determination has been made of the Jobs In Lieu Payment Percentage Increase or the Investment 
In Lieu Payment Percentage Increase, whichever is determined to be applicable, the Trustee shall 
compute the amount of the additional In Lieu Payment resulting therefrom and will issue a 
supplemental bill to the Company for that payment. 

(e) Project Closure.  In the event the Project closes or moves from the 
County during the Initial Period, the City and the County reserve the right to immediately 
terminate the tax abatements provided by this Agreement and require the partial repayment of 
amounts that would have been payable on the Property during the Initial Period as if it were 
subject to property taxes.  In the event the Company elects to undertake an Optional Expansion 
but the Project closes or moves from the County during the term of the Optional Expansion 
Period, the City and the County reserve the right to immediately terminate the tax abatements 
provided by this Agreement and require the partial repayment of amounts that would have been 
payable on the Expansion Property during the Optional Expansion Period as if it were subject to 
property taxes.  The provisions of this subsection (e) shall be the sole remedy for a closure or 
relocation of the Project. 



 7 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

7. Disbursements by Trustee.  All sums received by the Trustee pursuant to 
Paragraph 3 for the benefit of the City and County general funds shall be disbursed to the general 
funds of the City and the County in accordance with this paragraph and in accordance with the 
normal requirements of law governing the settlement and paying over of taxes to counties and 
municipalities.  All such sums received shall be divided into two (2) accounts, one for the use 
and benefit of the City and the other for the use and benefit of the County.  The account for the 
use and benefit of the City shall be funded with the proportionate amount to which the In Lieu 
Payments are attributable to property taxes which would otherwise be owed to the City, and the 
account for the use and benefit of the County shall be funded with the proportionate amount to 
which the In Lieu Payments are attributable to property taxes which would otherwise be owed to 
the County. All sums received by the Trustee pursuant to Paragraph 3 for the benefit of the 
County school system shall be disbursed to the County and thereafter deposited into an account 
for the educational use and benefit of the County schools.  The parties acknowledge and agree 
that all disbursements to the City and County pursuant to this Agreement are in furtherance of 
the Board’s purposes as set forth in Tennessee Code Annotated § 7-53-305.   

8. Economic Development Fee. For each calendar year beginning with 2016 
in which the In Lieu Payment Percentage as to the City and County General Fund (see chart in 
Section 4) is less than 100%, an economic development fee (an “Economic Development Fee”) 
equal to 15% of the difference between (1) the property taxes that would otherwise be payable 
for such year on the Property if it were subject to property taxes as calculated by the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 2 above, and (2) the amount of the School Portion with respect to the 
Property for such year as calculated pursuant to Section 4 above, shall be computed and collected 
by the Trustee; provided, however, in no event shall the total of the Company’s annual General 
Fund In Lieu Payments plus the Economic Development Fee exceed one hundred percent 
(100%) of the general fund taxes that would be assessed against the Project if it were subject to 
general fund taxes.  Beginning in 2016, this Economic Development Fee will be paid for each 
year that the Property is owned by the Board through and including 2020 if the In Lieu Payment 
Percentage as to the City and County General Fund (see chart in Section 4) for such calendar 
year is less than 100%.  If the Board’s ownership ceases during any calendar year, then that 
year's Economic Development Fee will be prorated.  The Trustee shall add the Economic 
Development Fee as a separate line item on the Tax Bill, and the Company shall pay the 
Economic Development Fee for each such year during the term before March 1 of the following 
year.  Any failure to pay the Economic Development Fee on or before March 1 shall result in 
penalties and late charges calculated in the same manner as penalties and late charges are 
calculated for In Lieu Payments under this Agreement. 

The Trustee shall not deduct any part of the Economic Development Fee 
from the School Portion of the In Lieu Payments.  The Trustee shall prorate the Economic 
Development Fee between the County Portion and the City Portion of the In Lieu Payments and 
disburse the Economic Development Fee.  The Trustee shall disburse the County’s portion of the 
Economic Development Fee to the County, and the County shall hold such funds to be used for 
economic development purposes as directed by the Mayor of the County.  The Trustee shall 
disburse the City’s portion of the Economic Development Fee to the City, and the City shall hold 
such funds to be used for economic development purposes, as directed by the Mayor of the City.   



 8 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

9. Contest by the Company.  The Company shall have the right to contest the 
appraisal or assessment of the Property by the Assessor, the computation by the Trustee of the 
amount of the In Lieu Payment and the calculation of the Economic Development Fee.  If the 
Company contests any such appraisal or assessment, then it shall present evidence to the 
Assessor in favor of its position.  If the In Lieu Payments, or the Economic Development Fee, as 
applicable, being contested shall be or become due and payable, the Company shall make such 
payments under protest.  The Company and the Assessor or the Trustee, as the case may be, shall 
negotiate in good faith for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days to resolve any disputes as to 
appraisal, assessment or computation of the In Lieu Payment or the Economic Development Fee, 
as applicable.  If the Company and the Assessor or the Trustee, as the case may be, are unable to 
resolve a dispute, then the Company may file suit in the Chancery Court of Hamilton County to 
ask that the provisions of this Agreement, including those covering appraisal, assessment and 
computation, be construed or applied to the relevant facts by the Chancery Court in order to 
resolve such dispute. 

10. Lien on the Property.  Any amounts which remain payable under this 
Agreement shall become a lien on the Property, and such lien shall be enforceable against the 
Property in the event that any payment owing hereunder is not timely made in accordance with 
this Agreement. 

11. Term.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date that the Board 
leases the Property to the Company and shall continue for so long as the Board holds title to any 
of the Property and leases such property to the Company or the Company has made all payments 
required hereunder, whichever shall later occur. 

12. Leasehold Taxation.  The Board, the City, the County, the Trustee and the 
Assessor acknowledge and agree that the Company’s personal property leasehold interest in the 
Personal Property under the Lease shall not be subject to assessment for ad valorem tax 
purposes.  The Board, the City, the County, the Trustee and the Assessor further acknowledge 
and agree that the Company’s real property leasehold interest in the Real Property under the 
Lease is not expected to be subject to assessment for ad valorem tax purposes, as all amounts 
paid by the Company, including without limitation, rent under the Lease, costs for maintenance, 
insurance, utilities, infrastructure, site preparation, acquisition, construction, and other costs for 
or in connection with the Project, cost of capital for or in connection with the Project, and 
obligations of the Company under the Lease would, at the present time, be considered as rent 
payable under the Lease for purposes of determining the Company’s leasehold interest.  As a 
result, the actual or imputed rent for the real property portion of the Property is expected to equal 
or exceed the fair market rent for purposes of Tenn. Code Ann. § 67-5-605.  If the leasehold 
interest of the Company in the Property should be subject to ad valorem taxation for any year 
hereunder, then any amounts assessed as taxes thereon shall be credited against any In Lieu of 
Tax Payments and Economic Development Fees paid under this Agreement and carried forward 
from year to year until fully utilized. Additionally, in the event the Company determines, in the 
exercise of reasonable discretion, that there is a possibility, notwithstanding the foregoing 
agreement, of a positive taxable leasehold interest in the Property, the Company shall have the 
continuing option to require the Board take all reasonable steps, at no additional cost to the 
Board, to restructure this Agreement and the related Lease to eliminate the positive leasehold 
value and to deliver the same economic benefit to the Company as is contemplated under this 



 9 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

Agreement without the imposition of any ad valorem taxes on such leasehold value.  Such 
options may include, but are not limited to, an arrangement by which the Board issues and the 
Company purchases industrial revenue bonds to finance all or a portion of the Property, provided 
that such bonds shall be limited obligations of the Board and non-recourse to the City and the 
County. 

13. Notices, etc.  All notices and other communications provided for 
hereunder shall be written (including facsimile transmission and telex), and mailed or sent via 
facsimile transmission or delivered addressed as follows: 

Board or to the City: 
 
 
 
 
 

Wade A. Hinton 
City Attorney 
City of Chattanooga 
Suite 200, 100 E. 11th Street 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

The County: 
 
 
 
 
 

Rheubin M. Taylor  
County Attorney 
Hamilton County Government 
Room 204, County Courthouse 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 

Company: 
 
 
 
 

Van De Wiele, Inc.  
14325 South Lakes Drive 
Charlotte, North Carolina  28273 
Attn: Bob Harding 

With a Copy to: Miller & Martin PLLC 
832 Georgia Avenue 
Suite 1000 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
Attn: Mark W. Smith 
 

The Trustee: Hamilton County Trustee 
Hamilton County Courthouse 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
 

The Assessor Hamilton County Assessor of Property 
Hamilton County Courthouse 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
 

Any such person may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different 
addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communication shall be sent.  All 
such notices and communications shall, when mailed by registered and certified mail, return 
receipt requested, Express Mail, or facsimile, be effective when deposited in the mails or if sent 
upon facsimile transmission, confirmed electronically, respectively, addressed as aforesaid. 



 10 
12323234v7  27356-0001 

14. No Waiver; Remedies.  No failure on the part of any party hereto, and no 
delay in exercising any right under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall 
any single or partial exercise of any right under this Agreement preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right.  The remedies provided in this Agreement are 
cumulative and are not exclusive of any remedies provided by law. 

15. Severability.  In the event that any clause or provision of this Agreement 
shall be held to be invalid by any court or jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

16. No Liability of Board’s Officers.  No recourse under or upon any 
obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be had against any 
incorporator, member, director or officer, as such, of the Board, whether past, present or future, 
either directly or through the Board.  Any and all personal liability of every nature, whether at 
common law or in equity, or by statute or by constitution or otherwise, of any such incorporator, 
member, director or officer, as such, is hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of 
and consideration for the execution of this Agreement. 

17. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of each of the parties and signatories hereto and to their respective successors and 
assigns. 

18. Governing Law.  The Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of Tennessee. 

19. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended only in writing, signed 
by each of the parties hereto, except that the Trustee and the Assessor shall not be required to 
join in amendments unless such amendments affect their respective duties hereunder. 

20. Annual Report. On or before January 31 of each year this Agreement is in 
effect, the Company shall provide a report to the Mayor of the City and the Mayor of the County 
summarizing its investment in the Property and the development and operation of the Project for 
purposes of analyzing the Company’s progress in achieving the Investment, Jobs and Wage 
Projection. 

21. Stormwater Fees.  The Company shall be responsible for all stormwater 
fees assessed by the City against the Property. 



12323234v7  27356-0001 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and date first above written. 

ATTEST:     THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

 
 
By:  _______________________    By:         

Secretary     Chairman 
 
 



12323234v7  27356-0001 

VAN DE WIELE, INC., a North Carolina 
corporation 
 
 
By:         

Name:        

Title:        
 
 



12323234v7  27356-0001 

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE 
 
 
By:         
 Mayor 
 
 



12323234v7  27356-0001 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
 
 
By:         
 County Mayor 
 
 
WILLIAM F. HULLANDER 
 
 
By:         
 Hamilton County Trustee 
 
 
WILLIAM C. BENNETT 

 
 

By:         
Hamilton County Assessor of Property 



12323234v7  27356-0001 

EXHIBIT “A” 
TO PILOT AGREEMENT 

 
REAL PROPERTY  

 
[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION]



12323234v7  27356-0001 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

TO PILOT AGREEMENT 
 

PERSONAL PROPERTY  

During the Tax Abatement Period, the Project shall include all machinery, equipment and other 
tangible personal property that is installed or otherwise located on or about or used in connection 
with the real property described in Exhibit A attached to this Agreement between [September 1, 
2014 and September 1, 2017], together with replacements thereof and substitutions therefor, in 
connection with the Company’s operations on such property.   
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	914-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - August 27, 2014_1109_08-27-14 Recessed
	914-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - August 27, 2014 _1110_08-27-14 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	914-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - September 3, 2014 _1111_09-03-14 Regular
	914-_S_Minutes_RecessedMeeting - September 10, 2014
	DELEGATIONS
	914-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission Todd Leamon September 8 2014_1113_Order of Designation
	914-_S_Report_Criminal Court Clerk's Report - July 1, 2013 thru June 30, 2014_1114_Criminal Court Clerk's Report - July 1, 2013 thru June 30, 2014
	914-12_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1107_09-17-14
	914-12_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1107_09-17-14 A
	914-14_R_Zoning_Rezoning._1096_2014-071
	914-14_S_Zoning_Rezoning._1096_2014-071
	914-15_R_Zoning_Rezoning._1098_2014-081
	914-15_S_Zoning_Rezoning._1098_2014-081
	914-16_R_Sheriff Hammond_Port Security Grant 2014 Sheriff's Office_1091_PSG 2014
	914-17_R_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Walden Contract Approval._1093_Walden HCSO Resol
	914-17_S_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Walden Contract Approval._1093_Walden Sheriff Contract
	914-18_R_Albert Kiser_Issuance of G.O. Bonds or Bond Anticipation Notes._1095_Reimbursement Resolution
	914-19_R_Don Allen_Mobile Solutions Mobile Command Center._1099_RES. MOBILE SOLUTIONS MOBILE COMMAND CENTER
	914-19_S_Don Allen_Mobile Solutions Mobile Command Center._1099_MOBILE COMMAND CENTER
	914-20_R_County Mayor_Learning Blade Site software._1094_RES. LEARNING BLADE SOFTWARE FOR MIDDLE SCHOOLS
	914-20_S_County Mayor_Learning Blade Site software._1094_LEARNING BLADE SOFTWARE
	914-21_R_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement_1101_RESOLUTION
	914-21_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement_1101_artechproposal
	914-21_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement_1101_RESOLUTION214-34
	914-21_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement_1101_RESOLUTION414-12
	914-22_R_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1102_resolution
	914-22_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1102_michaelbradyproposal
	914-22_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1102_resolution214-36
	914-22_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1102_resolution414-13
	914-23_R_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1103_resolution
	914-23_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1103_HK A&E Design Fee proposal 7-21-14
	914-23_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1103_resolution214-35
	914-23_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1103_resolution414-14
	914-24_R_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1092_Ragan Smith 2
	914-24_S_Todd Leamon_Professional Agreement._1092_2012-060_Ooltewah-Georgetown_PH II ROW_08-20-14
	914-25_R_Rheubin Taylor_Settlement of the Doub Case._1108_Template - A Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Doub Case
	914-26_R_Becky Barnes_Chronic Disease Management and School Health Promotion Services._1097_Resolution Chronic Disease Management
	914-26_S_Becky Barnes_Chronic Disease Management and School Health Promotion Services._1097_Chronic Disease Managment 2018
	914-27_R_Becky Barnes_Tobacco Use Prevention Billboard Campaign._1100_RES. TOBACCO USE PREVENTION CAMPAIGN
	914-27_S_Becky Barnes_Tobacco Use Prevention Billboard Campaign._1100_Tobacco Use Billboard Campaign
	914-28_R_Becky Barnes_Cinema Advertising Commercials for Tobacco Exposure Prevention Campaign._1105_RES. SCREENVISION CINEMA ADVERTISING COMMERCIALS
	914-28_S_Becky Barnes_Cinema Advertising Commercials for Tobacco Exposure Prevention Campaign._1105_Screenvision
	914-29_R_Becky Barnes_Immunization Services._1104_Immunization Services. Resolution 2015
	914-29_S_Becky Barnes_Immunization Services._1104_Immunization Services. Contract 2015
	914-30_R_Becky Barnes_Rape Prevention Education Services._1112_Rape Prevention Resolution 2015
	914-30_S_Becky Barnes_Rape Prevention Education Services._1112_Rape Prevention Contract 2015
	914-31_R_County Mayor Van De Weile PILOT Agreement
	914-31_S_County Mayor Van De Weile PILOT Agreement 

